
TEHACHAPI CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING,
TEHACHAPI REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY REGULAR MEETING,

TEHACHAPI PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORIW REGULAR MEETING, AND
TEHACHAPI CITY FINANCING CORPORATION REGULAR MEETING

Beekay Theatre
110 South Green Street

Tuesday, February 21,2012 - 6:00 P.M.

Persons desiring disability-related accommodations should contact the City Clerk no later than
ten days prior to the need for the accommodation. A copy of any writing that is a public record
relating to an open session of this meeting is available at City Hall, 115 South Robinson Street,
Tehachapi, California.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION

Participation in the invocation is strictly voluntary. Each City Councilmember, city employee,
and each person in attendance may participate or not participate as he or she chooses.

PLEDGE TO FLAG

CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNIW FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered to be routine and non-controversial by city
staff. Consent items will be considered first and may be approved by one motion if no member
of the council or audience wishes to comment or ask questions. lf comment or discussion is
desired by anyone, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered in
listed sequence with an opportunity for any member of the public to address the city council
concerning the item before action is taken. Staff recommendations are shown in caps. Please
turn all cellular phones off during the meeting.

AUDIENCE ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

The City Council welcomes public comments on any items within the subject matter jurisdiction
of the Gouncil. We respectfully request that this public forum be utilized in a positive and
constructive manner. Persons addressing the Council should first state their name and area of
residence, the matter of City business to be discussed, and the organization or persons
represented, if any. To ensure accuracy in the minutes, please fill out a speaker's card at the
podium. Comments directed to an item on the agenda should be made at the time the item is
called for discussion by the Mayor. Questions on non-agenda items directed to the Council or
staff should be first submitted to the City Clerk in written form no later than 12:OQ p.m. on the
Wednesday preceding the Council meeting; otherwise response to the question may be carried
over to the next City Council meeting. No action can be taken by the Council on matters not
listed on the agenda except in certain specified circumstances. The Council reserves the right
to limit the speaking time of individual speakers and the time allotted for public presentations.



TEHACHAPI CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING,
TEHACHAPI REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY REGULAR MEETING,

TEHACHAPI PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING, AND
TEHACHAPI CITY FINANCING CORPORATION REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY. FEBRUARY 21 ,2012 - 6:00 P.M. - PG.2

1. General public comments regarding matters not listed as an agenda item.

2. Mayor Grimes to present a Proclamation to the Safely Surrendered Baby Coalition.

CITY CLERK REPORTS

Tehachapi City Council Unassigned Res. No. 05-12
Tehachapi City Council Unassigned Ord. No. 12-01-709
Tehachapi Redevelopment Successor Agency Unassigned Res. No. 05-12
Tehachapi Public Financing Authority Unassigned Res. No. 01-12

*3. ALL ORDINANCES SCHEDULED FOR INTRODUCTION OR ADOPTION AT THIS
MEETING SHALL BE READ BY TITLE ONLY

*4. Minutes for the Tehachapi City Council, Tehachapi Public Financing Authority, and the
Tehachapi City Financing Corporation regular meeting on February 6, 2012 and the
Tehachapi Redevelopment Successor Agency special meeting on February 6, 2012 -
APPROVE AND FILE

FINANCE DIRECTOR REPORTS

*5. Disbursements, bills, and claims for February 14, 2012, through February 14, 2012 -
AUTHORIZE PAYMENTS

*6. City of Tehachapi Treasurer's Report through January 2012 - RECEIVE REPORT

*7. California Government Code Section 53646(a) requires council members to review and
approve the lnvestment Policy each year - ADOPT A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN
INVESTMENT POLICY AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. O4-11

8. PUBLIC HEARING - As part of the annual Public Transit Claim for Transportation
Development Act funding, it is necessary to conduct a public hearing to receive public
testimony concerning the transit needs within the City. Currently, the City of Tehachapi
provides a transit service named Dial-A-Ride, through Kern Regional Transit. The average
cost per rider from July 2010 to June 201 1 is $21.97 and the subsidized cost per rider during
the same period is $21 .20 - OPEN HEARING; NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND
CORRESPONDENCE; STAFF REPORT; RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT; CLOSE
HEARING; ADOPT A RESOLUTION FINDING THAT THERE ARE NO UNMET TRANSIT
NEEDS THAT ARE REASONABLE TO MEET WITHIN THE CITY

9. Annualfinancial report for the year ended June 30, 2011 - REcElvE REpoRT

AIRPORT MANAGER REPORTS

*10. Mr. Marshall Bottortf's original 1S-year hangar ground lease has expired - APPROVE THE
NEW GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEHACHAPI AND
MARSHALL BOTTORFF FOR HANGAR 38W
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*1 1. A new lease agreement needs to be approved in order to standardized lease agreements
and fee practices at Tehachapi Municipal Airport - APPROVE THE NEW GROUND LEASE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEHACHAPI AND GEORGE T. SANDY FOR
HANGAR 24E

CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS

12. Present options to City Gouncil regarding open seat on Council due to former
Councilmember Vernon's resignation - DIRECT STAFF

CITY MANAGER REPORTS

*13.Council adopted Resolution No. 11-06 establishing a Park and Recreational Facility Fee.
According to Government Code section 66001, a five year report must be completed which
identifies the historical revenues and projects costs - APPROVE THE FIVE-YEAR IMPACT
FEE REPORT FOR PARK AND RECREATION IMPACT FEES AND MAKE THE
NECESSARY FINDINGS REQUIRED IN CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
66001

14. Report to Council regarding current activities and programs - VERBAL REPORT

MAYOR APPOINTMENTS

15. Appoint one member to LAFCO to fill the vacancy created by former Councilmember
Vernon's resignation.

On their own initiative, a Councilmember may ask a question for clarification, make a brief
announcement, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, take
action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda, request staff to report back
at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or make a brief report on his or her own
activities. (Per Gov't. Code 95495 .2@))

CLOSED SESSION

1. Approval of closed session minutes of February 6,2012.

ADJOURNMENT



TEHACHAPI CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING,
TEHACHAPI PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING, AND

TEHACHAPI CITY FINANCING CORPORATION REGULAR MEETING
BeeKay Theatre

110 South Green Street
Monday, February 6,2012 - 6:00 P.M.

NOTE: Sm, Ve, Gr, Wiand Ni are abbreviations for Council Members Smith, Vernon, Grimes, Wiggins and Nixon,
respectively. For example, Gr/Sm denotes Council Member Grimes made the motion and Council Member Smith
seconded it. The abbreviation Ab means absent, Abd abstained, Ns noes, and NAT no action taken.

ACTION TAKEN

CALL TO ORDER

Meeting called to order by Mayor Grimes at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Roll call by City Clerk Denise Jones.

Present: Mayor Grimes, Mayor Pro-Tem smith, councilmembers
Vernon & Wiggins 

I

I

Absent: Councilmember Nixon I

I

lNvocATroN I

By Ron Barker of the First Baptist Church. I

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 
I

I

Led by Chief Kermode. 
I

CONSENT AGENDA 
I

I

Approved consent agenda. I nRe_tor"a consent Asenda
Ve/Sm Motion Carried
Ab: Ni

1. Presentation from the Jeremy Staat Foundation.

2. General public.comments regarding matters not listed as an agenda
item were received from:
a. Robert Moran, old west Ranch resident, thanked council for

support of option Map B in regards to wind boundary and spoke
to wind boundary issue.



Tehachapi City Council Regular Meeting - February 6,2012
Tehachapi Public Financing Authority Regular Meeting And
Tehachapi City Financing Corporation Regular Meeting ACTION TAKEN

b. Nancy Buge, city resident, asked about cost of branding program
for Gity.

c. Christy Cowee thanked Council and staff for their continued
service to the community.

d. Carl Gehricke commented on Chamber of Commerce having
visitor information.

e. Charles White, city resident, commented on branding program.
f. Mary Beth Garrison, General Manager of Stallion Springs

Community Services District, spoke about branding process.

CITY CLERK REPORTS

*3. ALL ORDINANCES SCHEDULED FOR INTRODUCTION OR
ADOPTION AT THIS MEETING SHALL BE READ BY TITLE
ONLY.

*4. Minutes for the Tehachapi city council, Tehachapi Redeveropment
Agency, Tehachapi Public Financing Authority, and the Tehachapi
City Financing Corporation regular meeting on January 17, 2012 -
APPROVED AND FILED.

*5. The Jeremy staat Foundation has submitted a speciar use
application for the wall ro wall cross country Bicycre Ride event.
This event will be held on Sunday, February 19, 2O12,trom g:00 am
until 10:00 pm. They are requesting the closure of F street from
curry street to the Green street and the use of centennial plaza -
APPROVED THE SPECIAL USE APPLICATION AND
ASSOCIATED STREET CLOSURE FOR THE WALL TO WALL
CROSS COUNTRY BICYCLE RIDE EVENT, SUBJECT TO CITY
CONDITIONS AND CITY ATTORNEY APPROVAL OF
INSURANCE

FINANCE DIRECTOR REPORTS

*6. Disbursements, bills, and claims for January 10, 2012, through
January 31, 2012 -AUTHORTZED PAYMENTS.

*7. The State of California reimburses local agencies for costs incurred
in complying with certain state-mandated programs. The city has
been working with Andy Nichors for sB90 Mandated cost cjaims
filing since 20o1lo2 AppRovED THE coNTRAcr wtrH
NICHOLS CONSULTING FOR THE SB9O FILING SERVICE

AIRPORT COMMISSION REPORTS

8. Airport commissioner David Bushman has been absent three
consecutive Airport commission Meetings. According to the
Tehachapi Municipal code, he needs to badeclared retirel and his

ition deemed vacant - AtRpoRT coMMtsstoN CHA|RMAN

All Ord. Read By Title Only
Ve/Sm Motion Carried
Ab: Ni

Approved & Filed
Ve/Sm Motion Carried
Ab: Ni

Approved The Special Use
Application & Asociated
Street Closure For The Wall
To Wall Gross Gountry
Bicycle Ride Event, Subject
To City Conditaons & City
Attorney Approval Of
Insurance
VdSm Motion Carried
Abr Ni

Authorized Payments
Ve/Sm Motion Carried
Ab: Ni

Approved The Contract With
Nichols Gonsulting For The
SB90 Filing Service
Vey'Sm Motion Carried
Ab: Ni

NAT



Tehachapi City Council Regular Meeting - February 6,2012
Tehachapi Public Financing Authority Regular Meeting And
Tehachapi City Financing Corporation Regular Meeting ACTION TAKEN

ERIC HANSEN GAVE REPORT; DAVID BUSHMAN EXPLAINED
HIS SIDE OF CURRENT SITUATION AND EXPRESSED HIS
DESIRE TO STAY ON COMMISSION

UTILITY MANAGER REPORTS

*9. Consideration of the annual agreement with Golden Hills I S,!-1.'."4 Annualwater

Community Service District to allow the City to pump an additiona | fijfllEoL€aseasreement
333 acre-feet of ground water in the calendar Vear 2012 - lgommunityservicesDistrict
AppRovED ANNUAL WATER RTGHTS LEASE ncneEnairur I Xflsili 

Motion carried

WITH GOLDEN HILLS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

POLICE CHIEF REPORTS

.10.The city receives $100,000.00 from the State of California through l&n'or"osLEsFSpendinsthe Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF) aflo I i53, uotion carried
commonly referred to as state "cops" funds. The Folice I Ab, ni

Department has developed a proposed spending plan for the 2011-
2012 SLESF funds - APPROVED SLESF SPEN-D|NG PLAN

11. The current police station is woefully inadequate as a modern public
safety facility. with council approval, staff continued its due
diligence associated with a new facility. Based upon the information
developed by statf, we are now prepared to recommend the
purchase and remodel of an existing structure located at22o w uc"
street - GHIEF KERMODE GAVE REpoRT; srAN BECKHAM,
CITY RESIDENT, ASKED ABOUT LEASING THE BUILDING ANT'
succEsTED DlssolvtNc poltcE DEPARTMENT; MARY
BETH GARRISON, SSCSD MANAGER, COMMENTED ON COST
oF NEw PoLlcE FActLtw; CARL GEHR|GKE, ctry RESIDENT,
REQUESTED THAT CITY BUILDING INSPECTOR GO THROUGI.|
BUILDING; GEORGE BARKER ASKED ABOUT PRICE
NEGorlATloN; ANDREW cossAGE, crw RES|DENT, FEELa
SAFER WITH CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT; COUNCILMCMECN
WIGGINS COMMENTED ON RISKS OF LEASING A BUILDING
AND THE LIABILITY OF CONTINUED USE OF CURRENT
PoLlcE FAclLlw; GoUNC|LMEMBER sMtrH ASKED ABour
ESTIMATE OF BUILDING A NEW POLICY FACILITY FROM THE
GROUND uP; coUNctLMEMBER vERNoN ExpREssED HER
SUPPORT AND APPRECIATION TO STAFF FOR WORK ON
PROJECT AND ASKED ABOUT PUBLIC SAFEW IMPACTFUND; CHIEF BURR|S, STALLTON SpRtNcS pOLtCE
DEPARTMENT, COMMENTED ON BENEFITS OF THEIR NEWPOLICY FACIL|TY; MAYOR GRTMES COMMENTED ON
BENEFITS OF LOCAL CONTROL OF LAW ENFORCEMENT;
AUTHORIZED THE MAYOR TO SIGN ESCROW INSTRUCTIONd
AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS TO PURCHASE 22O W CSTREET FOR THE PRICE OF $4OO,OOO.OO AND AUTHOR IZED

Authorized The Mayor To
Sign Escrow Instructions &
Required Documents To
Purchase 22OW C Street For
The Price Of $eg0,00t.00 *
Authorized Staff To lssue A
Request For Qualifications
('RFO') For An Architect
With Experience In
Designing Police Facilities
Ve/lllli Motion Carried
Ab: Ni



Tehachapi City Council Regular Meeting - February 6,2012
Tehachapi Public Financing Authority Regular Meeting And
Tehachapi City Financing Corporation Regular Meeting ACTION TAKEN

srAFF TO TSSUE A REQUEST FOR OUALIF|CATIONS ("RFQ")
FOR AN ARCHITECT WITH EXPERIENCE IN DESIGNING
POLICE FACILITIES

CITY MANAGER REPORTS

"12.|t is necessary for certain employees to access confidential
documents or information during the course of their work duties.
Staff feels it is necessary for Council to allow the City Manager to
designate certain officers or employees as confidential officers -
APPROVED RESOLUTION NO. 04.12 ALLOWING THE CITY
MANAGER TO DESIGNATE CERTAIN OFFICERS OR
EMPLOYEES AS CONFIDENTIAL OFFICERS.

*13.Report to Council regarding current activities and programs -
VERBAL REPORT.

MAYOR APPOINTMENTS

14. Appoint two members to the Oversight Committee of Successor
Agency to the Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency MAYOR
GRIMES APPOINTED HIMSELF AND CITY MANAGER GREG
GARRETT TO OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

ADJOURNMENT TO A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE TEHACHAPI
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

COUNCIL MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS

1. Mayor Grimes reminded everyone about the Jeremy staat wall to
Wall fundraiser event on February 19, 2012.

2. councilmember Vemon submitted her resignation effective
February 7,2012.

cLosED sEsstoN

1. Conference with legal counsel regarding potential claim from the
Broome Fami[ Trust per Government Code Section 54956.9(c).

ADJOURNMENT

The city council/Boards adjourned at 8:04 p.m. to a Tehachapi city
council, Tehachapi Redevelopment successor Agency, Tehachafi
Public Financing Authority and rehachapi City Financing Corporation
Regular Meeting to be held on Tuesday, February 21, 2012, at
6:

Approved Res. No.0&12
Allowing The City Manager
To D€ignate Certain
Oflicers Or Employees As
Confidential Officers
VdSm Motion Garried
Ab: Ni

Gave Report

Mayor Grimes Appointed
Himself & City Manager Greg
Garrett To Oversight
Commattee



MINUTES

A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TEHACHAPI CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS
GOVERNING BODY OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE TEHACHAPI
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AND A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE TEHACHAPI
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

BeeKay Theatre
110 South Green Street

Monday, February 6,2012 - 6:00 P.M.

NOTE: Sm, Ve, Gr, Wi and Ni are abbreviations for Council Members Smith, Vernon, Grimes, Wiggins and Nixon
respectively. For example, Gr/Sm denotes Council Member Grimes made the motion and Councii Member Smith
seconded it. The abbreviation Ab means absent, Abd abstained, Ns noes, and NAT no action taken.

ACTION TAKEN
BUSINESS

1. ADOpTED RESOLUTION NO. 01_12 OF THE ClTy COUNCIL I wrnre Motioncarried

ACTING AS THE GOVERNING BODY FOR THE SUCCESSOR I 
Ab: Ni

AGENCY TO THE TEHACHAPI REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGUI.ATIONS FOR THE
OPERATIONS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY AS A NEW
LEGAL ENTITY SEPARATE FROM THE CIry AND TAKING
CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

3.

4.

ADOPTED RESOLUTION NO. 02-12 OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
TEHACHAPI REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY CREATING A
REDEVELOPMENT OBLIGATION RETIREMENT FUND AND
TAKING CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

ADOPTED RESOLUTION NO. 03-12 OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
TEHACHAPI REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ADOPTING AN
ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND
TAKING CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

ADOPTED RESOLUTION NO. 04-12 OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
TEHACHAPI REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AUTHORIZING
THE INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE LOCAL AGENCY
INVESTMENT FUND OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND
TAKING CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

Wil/e Motion Carried
Ab: Ni

WiiVe Motion Carried
Ab: Ni

Wiil/e Motion Caried
Ab: Ni



City ofTehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descriotion

Check No: 0 Check Daie:
41816055 PWindustrial acetylene

Check No: 0 Check Date:
10335021 UT Use Tax
10335021 Swr/dreamsicle

Accounts PaYable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference

Yendor: fi)15

Printed: 0awl20t2 16:00
Detail

Check AmountInvoice Date

211 Praxair Distribution, Inc.

ChecJr No:
Btl5374 |
B115283
Btt5472
B115728 I
Bl14953 I
81t53742
8rr57282
Blr5473
Btl4953 2
Bl15289
Brr4926
Btt528r'-
B115730

CheckNo:
238143363
238t43362

Check No:
A202575

Check No:
7616893

Check No: 0
ffi42r9
6W222
6044219 CR
60/.r'.237
6n/r'.240
M5t7

r20.01
120.01

-to.72
158.52
147.80

75.00
15.00
15.00
50.00
50.00
2/+.40

36.00
15.00
24.W
15.00

210.00
210.00
210.00
949.00

368.95
108.96
477.9r

120.00
r20.00

71.00
71.00

2t6.ll
66.98
44.57
51.70
51.70

252.53
594.45

313.74
568.e

16.75
111.01

1,010.14

2,066.2r
2,066.2r

Chec} Date: ?

Wtr/sampleJCurry Well
Wtr/samples/Dennison Well
Wtr/samples/Dennison Well
Wtr/sampleV600 Dennison/Mojave Well
Wr/sampleV309 East U 222 V est D
Wtr/sampledCurry Well
Wtr/sampled6fi) Dennison/Ivlojave Well
Wfr/sampledCurry Resv
Wtr/sampled309 East U222 W est D
Wtr/sampleJcurry Resv

S wr/samples/WWTP headwork
Swr/sdnpleVWWTP headwork
S wr/samples/WWlP headwork

Check Date: ?

PWtank lease

StrtJyard bottles

Chec} Ilate: ?

Swr/storm watet Jan 2012

CheclDate: ?

Swr/ph buffer solution kit/gel crtg

Check Date: ?

PWreplace fuel tank vent valve grom

PWgas cap
PWrepair order voided/CR
PWState smog inspection
Wtr/State smog inspection
Swr/replace 02 sensor

CheckDaiq ?

PWflat20'
PWl20recrtube20'
Wtr/2 5" blk pipe p.e. 6"
Swr/raised exp metaUround 20'

CheckDats ?

Strts/materiaUcold mix to yard

0112012012
Check Total:

Vendor: fi)27 Atco International
ou3v20l2
0u3U2012

CheckTotal:

Vendor: lX)35 BC Laboratories, Inc.
oll3ll20l2
0rl3ll20l2
oa0612012
oaMl2012
ou23l20r2
oll3ll20r2
oa6l2012
ul0612012
0u2312012
0ll3rl20l2
oll23l20r2
0u06nol2
oa0612012

Check Total:

Benz Propane Companyr Inc.
ra3u20rr
lu3ll20ll

Chec} Total:

BSK Analytical Laboratories
02lorl20r2

Check Total:

HacI Company
02lwl20r2

ChechTotal:

J&E Automotive Unlimited
la09.l20ll
ra0u20rr
ovou2012
lala20ll
lulu20ll
0u06t2012

Check Total:

Jim's Supply Company, Inc
01126t20r2
0r12612012
0112612012
ol12612012

Check Total:

Kern Bros. TrucHng, Inc.
0yr3l20r2

Check Total:

Vendor: lXXl

Vendor: (X)60

Yendor: 0193

Vendor: 0214

Vendor: 0218

,

CheckNo:
492t62
492t61 2
492t61 |
492t61 3

Check No:
59817

Vendor: 0Zl

Page I



City ofTehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descriotion

CheckNo: 0 Check Date: ?
187 54,r';9 0A3Y I PWrolloff service/KC gate/recycling
1954651 612989 PWcash tnrck
1954661 187543?Wfinance charge
1824163 Ul3U I PWfi nance charge
187 5433 0A3U I PWtrailer

CheckNo: 0 Ch€ckDate: ?
PC080282519 PWethercylassy

CheckNo: 0 CheckDats ?
0249315 PWtuel
0?+9491 PWtuel
0249&7 PWtuel

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?

0l3l 12 I Wtr/s€rvice chargey'Benz San
0l3ll2 2 Wtr/service chargdChemtool
0l3ll2 3 Wtr/service chargey'Henway
0l3ll2 4 Wtr/service charge/TUSD
0l3ll2 7 LlD/service charge/Warrior park
0l3ll2 5 LlD/service charge,/landscaping
0l3ll2 6 LlD/service chargey'Median

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?
636939 PWae 6.0sk

CheckNo: 0 Ch€ckDate: ?
567807 Wh/pressure data logger/fire hydran

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference Invoice Date

Printed: 0ul4l20t2 16:00
Detail

Check Arnount

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ? Vendor: 0Xi3
I l23l20ll GG/legal servicey'general business
ll 0l3ll2 GG/legal serviceVBroome Ranch
10 l23l20ll GG/legal service extra
7l23l20ll GC/legalservice/WalMart
8 0l3l12 GG/legal serviceVWalMart
25l23l20ll PWlegalfees
13 0l3ll2 PD/Pirchess motions
12 l23l20ll PD/legalservicey'Pitchess
38 0l3ll2 Teh tundingrtlegal services-extra 89-
37 l23l20ll LlD/legal servicry'Teh tunding LLC

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?
186718 Swr/gear lube/monolec R&O/engine oil

Check No: 0 Check Datq ?
1401829o6 PWsrvc chrg/auto cover/twl cntr/dis
140184061 PWsrvcchrg/autocover/twlcntr/dis

Vendor: 0275 LubricationEngineers,Inc.
oU27t20t2

CheckTotal:

Vendor: 03(X)

Iebeau, Thelen, LLP
lu3rl20ll
0ll3u20l2
la3u20rl
ra3u20rr
0y3U2012
ta3u20ll
olt3v20t2
ra3u20rr
0ll3lt20t2
ru3v20rr

Check Total:

536.50
3,154.00
1,069.50

665.00
14,098.00

r8.50
618.00
745.N

2,122.23
621.00

23,&7.73

3,t56.76
3,t56.76

75.&
7t.6

r47.30

476.91
20.m
11.47
4.37

7&5r
1,277.26

r2t.43
121.43

l,26l.w
343.5r

2,r70.39
3,774.99

4.50
4.50
4.50
4.50
4.50
4.50
4.50

31.50

683.37
683.37

968.82
968.82

Vendor: 0304

Vendor:037 QuinnCompany
out9t20l2

CheckTotal:

Vendon 0362 RSlPetroleumhoduc'ts
0yt0t20t2
0ut7t20t2
ou24t20t2

CheclTotal:

Vendor: 0426

Mission Linen & UnifomServic
0v24t20t2
0v3y20t2

Check Total:

Mojave Sanitation
0a3lnOtl
ra9n0r2
oU0v20t2
04,t3u20lr
0a3v20tl

CheclTotal:

Tehachapi-Cummings County Wate
0v3v2012
0u3v2012
0v3U20r2
ou3v20t2
0y3u2012
oU3U20r2
0v3u2012

CheclTotal:

Vulcan Maierials Company
OUwt2012

Check Total:

Vendor: 0441

Yendor: 0450 USABtuebook
0lto5t20t2

Check Total:

Page2



City of Tehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descriotion

Check No: 0 Check Date: ?

824266560 PD/subscription/CApenalcodepamphl

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference

Printed: 0awl20l2 t6:00
Derail

Check Amount

Check No:
l2l05l-0
tztt02-o
r2w7+0
121078-0
12099r-0
12095G0
t2tm7-O
120793-O
120873-0
r2w860

CheckNo:
22235576

Chec.kNo:
132186

CheclNo:
949427

CheckNo:
o30t20r24
03012012 |
030120122
030120123

Check No:
0720tr 2
0820t1 2
w20rr2
t020tt 2
tt2Ott 2
l220tr 2

352.05
352.O5

68.62
6.80

19.24
9.1l

72.90
109.55
38.47
32.16
68.59
72.9r

498.35

102.91
102.91

274.U
274.U

I13.58
I13.58

935.32
59,837.55
7,2t9.50

861.91
68,854.28

-396.08
-396.08
-396.08
-396.08
-396.08
-396.08

9,157.30
9,513.36
9,257.85
8,879.85
8,730.51

r0,190-43
53,352.82

200.00
200.00

360.00
360.00

Page 3

CheckDate ?

GG/paper
GG/bndr ltr index
GG/paper
GG/headset

GG/binderJpaper
GG/paper/binder clips
GG/pads/calculator
krdsc/inkcart
CD/custom stamp
CD/inkcart

CheckDatc: ?

PWbattery replacement

Chec} Date: ?

A/servicey'inspection & blades

Check llate: ?

StrtVvalve asy

CheckDate ?

Life/AD&D
Medical
Dental
Vision

CheckDate ?

Passenger fares July 201 I
Passenger fares Aug. 201 1

Passenger fares Sept. 2
Passenger fares Oct. 201 I
Passenger fares Nov. 201 I
Passenger fares Dec. 201 I
Dal-A-Rid€/Op€ration costs July 201
Dal-A-Ride/Operation costs Aug. 201
Did-A-Ride/Op€ration costs Sept. 20
Dal-A-Ride/Operation costs Oct 201
Dial-A-Ride/Operation costs Nov. 201
Dal-A-Rid€/Operation costs Dec. 201

CheckDatq ?

StrtMocal roads & streets needs as

Check Date: ?

CD/4 tires

Invoice Date

Yendor: 0471 West Payrnent Center
0uMt20r2

Check Total:

Vendor: 0476 WTITS Everything for the Ofric
0?/07D0r2
oawl2012
0aou20t2
0a@12012
0a$t2012
0u0u2012
0408t2012
ouut20t2
0u27t2012
040?/2012

Chech Total:

Vendor: M98 Interstate Battery System
0112612012

CheckTotal:

Vendor: 0560 KernMachinery
oawnotz

CheckTotal:

Vendor: 0745 JimBurteFord
01126t20r2

Chec} Total:

Vendor: 0E32 ACWA Health Benefits Authority
03tou20l2
03t0u20r2
03lou20l2
0310112012

Check Total:

Vendor: 0E42 Kern County Rmds Deparhent
0z0u2012
02.t0?/2012
oa0a20r2
0aw20r2
oaw20t2
0u0?/2012
0?J042012
0a0a20n
0?/0u20r2
oaw20l2
0z0?/2012
0z0?/2012

Vendor: (D56

CheckTotal:

League of California Cities
ra20l20rr

CheckTotal:

The Tire Store
rcna2Otl

Check Total:

0720ll
08201 I
w20tl
10201 I
l l20l I
l220tr

CheckNo:
98024

Check No:
68909

Vendor: 0!172



CheckNo: 0 CheckDatq ? Yendor: 12E6
25249 Rl GG/artworl/design/embroidery
25471 GG/5 jacketVembroidery
25425 GG/hatVembroidery
23298K1 PD/tailoring/sewonpatches
25092 RI PD/metal nametag CDC Fire Dept.or Sh
25361 PD/tailoring/remove patcheVsew patc

CheckNo: 0 CheckDaie: ?
020112 PD/acdrental

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?
308624 Centennial Plazalflow transmitter/kt

Chec.k No: 0 Check Datc: ?
127356 GG/admin fees

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate ?
l2C{J7 PD/hard drive3

Vendor: 1321

Vendor: 1413 KernTurl'Supply,Inc
01t20t20r2

Chec} Total:

Vendor: 1442 FI,EXOI\TEAFLAC
oaou20t2

Chech Total:

Vendor: 1676 T.E-E Tec
0uoU20t2

Check Total:

City ofTehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descriotion

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?

729932 PWfiller neck hose/fuel line hose/c
729986 PWlamp/work lmp
729623 PWmoltan 25 diat earth
72940/. PWretn riv/bumper clilassessor/ret
73ffi31 Strts/tuel filter
729520 Strts/carb kit
72943 StrtVelectrical fuel pump

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?

FEB3316 G'G/rental water cooler

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference Invoicc Date

M&M's Sports Uniform & Embroi
ra26t20rr
ort3v20r2
0v2312012
o3t2u20tl
ruwt2orr
0ln3t20l2

Check Total:

Culligan Wa0er Conditioning
0z0u20t2

Check Total:

Printed: 0Ul4l20l2 16:00
Detail

Check Amount

2,019.39
279.M
283.68

2.4
to.73
42.26

2,637.56

29.00
29,O0

528.85
528.85

50.00
50.00

Chec} No: 0 Check Datq ? Vendor: 1t01
4354568 Wtr/meter spud wrench
4248786 WE/4" roll seal rep kit
4332325 Wtr/redi clmps
4248617 rffr/flg ring gskt/bug screen 3/4"
4332315 Wtr/redi clmp for cts
4332162 Wtr/bdl valve/redi clamp
4302680 Wtr/brss nppl low lead

Vendor: 2111

203.76
203.76

365.61
190.31
298.24
256.O1

218.08
282.57
318.0r

1,928.83

t56.42
70.74
6.42

t9.27
5.3s

92.r2
183.39

533.7r

26.95

26.95

162.72
162.72

428.58
428.58

753.51

HD Supply Waterorks, LTD
0a$t20r2
ov26t20t2
0u3u2012
0y25t20r2
0rn7n0r2
ov27t20r2
0u27t20r2

Chec*.Total:

Swift Napa Auio Parts
0u30120r2
0rR0t20r2
0v2612012
0u7ll2012
olt3u20t2
0v25t20r2
0u25t2012

CheclTotal:

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate ? Yendor: 217E
02lll2 GG/annual subscriptionrenewal

Vendor: 2147 Colfee Break Service hc.
0z08/2012

Check Total:

The Daily Independent
0uru20l2

Check Total:

Check No: 0 Check Datc: ? Vendor: 21E2 BLR
2-7057790 Wtr/safety training presentations lA30l20ll

Check Total:

Check No: 0 Check Datq ?

1201148 Wtr/chlor sol
Yendor: 2200 Argo Chemical

0v25t20t2

Page 4



City of Tehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descriotion

Check No: 0 Check Date: ?
42449 A/gold service agreement

Check No: 0 Check Dats ?

18708 lT/January 2012 monthly consulting f
18781 lT/hard drive
18778 PD/vip car light/circuit breaker

CAeckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?
15288 C'Cr/l5k impring cartidge

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference Invoice Date

Check Total:

Vendor: 2490 QT Technologies
laMl20ll

CheckTotal:

Vendor: 2636 High Desert Wireless Broadband
0u0ll20l2
oaoa20t2
0a08t20t2

Check Total:

Yefron tl?3

Printed: 0al4l20l2 16:00
Detail

Check Amount

CheckNo: 0 CheckDatq ? Vendor: 2E92
4324 1 GG/cleaning/ll5SRobinson
43Ml GG/cleaning/ll5 S Robinson
43311 GG/cleaning/ll5SRobinson
43AZ PD/cleaning/I29 E F
430/'2 PD/cleaning/I29 E F
43312 PD/cleaning/l29EF
4333 Depot/cleaning/l0l WTeh
4306 DepoUcleaning/l0l WTeh
4326 Depot/cleaning/l0l WTeh blv
4332 A/cleaning/3l4NHayes
4305 Nclanngl3l4 N llayes
4325 Nclanin!314 N Hayes

CheckNo: 0 CheclDate: ?

96574 GG/rcdesign setup fee/annual fee
Vendor: 2914 CivicPtus

0v3ll20l2
Check Total:

CCI Central, Inc
ou3rn0t2

Check Total:

Mountain Maintenancrc Group, In
oaou20t2
0ura20r2
0aru20l2
wov2012
ovta20n
o2lla20r2
oalu20r2
0ura20n
oaou20t2
oara20t2
oula20l2
0u0u2012

Check Total:

753.51

995.00
995.00

2,000.00
160.86
259.5r

2120.37

r78.73
r78.73

2q.00
240.A0
2n.o0
300.00
300.00
300.00
250.m
250.00
250.00
50.00
50.00
50.00

2,520.m

8,529.34
8,529.34

280.00
1,000.00
1,280.00

1.60
16,771.88
16,773.48

98.51
98.51

600.00
600.00

271.69
27r.69

312.93

Page 5

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ? Yendor: 2955
0207122 Cle*ITfCrcgistration/AWhitmore
020712 1 Clerl/TTC registration/A. Whitmore

Chech No: 0 Check Date ? Vendor: 2981
153&3 GG/general fees

153&l A/R foreclosure-various AD 89-2

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ? Vendor: 29E9
679733 PD/tull service/08 Ford Explr

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?

181539 Consultingflegal service/Wind Energy

CheckNo: 0 CheckDatq ?

33215 PW/I dz no seize

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?
3037 PD/shifterselectormechanism

Vendor: 2994 RiclanlsrWatson & Gershon
tu30l20ll

Check Total:

Vendor: 3045 PrecisionSupply
0v27t20r2

Check Total:

Tehachapi Transmissions, Inc.
ouoll20r2

Maureen Kane & Associates, Inc
02tut20r2
0?/07n0r2

Check Totat:

Burkg William & Sorenson,Ll.
0?/0612012
040612012

Chec} Total:

My F'leet Center.com
0v08/2012

Check Total:

Yendor: 3051



City ofTehachapi Accounts Payable
User:delphina Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Invoice No Descriotion Reference Invoice Date

3056 PD/serpentine belt/trans fluid/pan C 0AOLl20l2
3034 PD/blower motor/prob light Oll27l2Dl2

Check Total:

Printed: 0al4l20l2 16:00
Detail

Check Amount

250.75
222.95
786.63

970.20
970.20

6,465.60
6,465.60

235.00
235.00

Chech No: 0 Check Date: ? Vendor: 3l)73
I l9l0l3 Wtr/Recycled water reviedfees

Check No: 0 Check Date: ?

004358 Swr/December biosolids

Cteck No: 0 Check Datq ?

l2lffil579 Swr/cable thru 3" cleanout/run camer

Check No: 0 Check Date ?

594396991001 PD/staples cartridges

CA Departnent of Public Health
0y30120r2

Check Total:

Vendor: 3179 LiberfComposting,Inc.
01t06t20r2

Chech Total:

Vendor: 3194 Roto-Rooter Service & Ptumbing
oU27t2o12

CheckTotal:

Vendor: 3217 0ffice Depot
0Ul7t20t2

Check Total:

Vendor: 3219 Seifel Consulting, Inc.
0tRv20t2

Check Total:

Trader Bo's Western & Work Wea
oaou2012
0z042012
wornon
oaoa20n

Check Total:

Statewide Safe$ & Signs, IDc.
0v25t2012
0v26t2012
ov3u2or2

Check Total:

Tehaciapi Lifestyle Magazine
0llr3l20r2
0u0U2012

CheclTotal:

Dennis Artzer
0ao8l2012

Check Total:

Stepp Manufacturing Co, Inc
0u19t20r2

Check Total:

NTSMikedon,LLC
0u26t2012

Check Total:

Myron Corp.
ra13z0rr

CheclTotal:

Vendor: 3264

Vendor: 32El

Vendor: 3437

Yendor: 3440

Vedor: 3449

Vendor: 350

68.66
68.66

CheclNo:
ll16l

CheckNo:
326610 |
3266103
326ffi9
3266102

CheclNo:
2420
2426
24.r',6

CheckNo:
576
578

Check No:
020812

CheckNo:
424tr,9

Check No:
0r82961

Check No:
80733918

Check Date: ?

Tehachapi on-call redevelopnent srvc

CheckDate: ?

PWsafety sweatshirtVorange
PWsafety sweatshirtsi/orange
Swr/annual safety shoes/JParks
A/safety sweatshirtdyellow

CheckDate ?

StrtVmarker egp red
StrtVeg wht/gm street name sign
StrtVmarter egp red/int blk/ylw end

CheckDate: ?

Gc/tull page ad

GG/tull page/qrtr page display ad 12

Check Datc: ?

Cnstr/mileage reimb/welding training

Check Date: ?

StrtMrose hot tar long/pipe plug/bu

Cteck Date: ?

StrtVsigns

CheckDate ?

PD/3" rosemont med/hot stamp/calenda

1,521.08
1,521.08

178.0r
178.01
178.O2

89.01
623,O5

77.22
48.26

125.48
250.96

500.00
1,550.00
2,050.00

426.24
426.U

1,942.27
1,942.27

29r.28
29r.28

240.r9
240.r9

Vendor: 353

Page 6



City ofTehachapi Accounts Payable
User:delphina Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Invpice No Description Reference Invoice Date

Check No: 0 Check Datq ? Vendor: 355 Tehachapi Tourism Com'nission
012512 GG/sponsorship on 26 brochure racks 0112512012
012512 2 Kltwo standing brochure racks 0ll25l?0l2

Check Total:

1as Plnmhing Company
0u26t2012

Check Total:

Report Total:

Printed: 0211412012 16:00
Detail

Check Amount

1,0@.00
315.80

1,315.80

450.63
450.63

22\MrA9

CheckNo: 0 CheckDate: ?

5990 Swr/main line install clean out
Vendor: 356

PageT



City ofTehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Description

Check No: 3521E Check Datq 0U0ll20l2
0l3l20l2 Cnstrcy'mileage reimbursement/trvUwe

Accrounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference

Printed: 0210112012 08:23
Detail

Check AmountInvoice Date

Yendor: 340 Dennis Artzer
0y3ll20l2

Check Total:

Check No:
2959Mr

Check No:
0l-3489

Check No:
012612

Check No:
020812

Check No:
0ll0l2 Rr

Check No:
o126r25
0120r26
0120t28
0r20129
0l24t2r
or25r22
or26123
ot26t24
ot20t2t2
01201214
0120t27
or24t2t5
ot28l2t7
0r26t219
0l26t2lt0
0r 18121 I l
ot27t2lt2
0r281218
01201210
0t20r2tl
0t27t2tt3
0t28t2tt4
0120r213
01201220
0120t221
0r201222
0r201223
01201224
0r201225
ot20r226 .

0120t227
0r201228
0120r229
0r2012r6
0r20t2t7

35219 CheckDatq 0U0U2012 Vendor: 2963
PD/subscriber access line

35220 CheckDate: 040U2012
City Hall frnt Office rehab/deposit/

35221 CheckDatq 0UOU2OL2
Finance/tueUSCMFO Chptr mtg/AB I x26

Vendor: 1287

Vendor: llV

Vendor: 0395

Yendor: 0372

AT&T
0ul3l20r2

Check Total:

Century Glass
0u2512012

Check Total:

HannahH. Chung
0u26t20t2

Check Total:

The Gas Company
0u08t2012

Check Total:

LAPRAAC - Baker to Vegas
0ln0t20t2

CheckTotal:

Southern California Edison
0u2612012
oU20t2012
0U20t2012
0u20t2012
0u24t2012
0u2512012
01t26120r2
0u26t2012
ou20t2012
oU20t20r2
0u20t2012
0u24t2012
0rna20t2
0v26nor2
0u26t2012
0ut8l20t2
ov27t20r2
01t28t20t2
01t20t2012
0u20t20r2
0v27t2012
01t28t2012
0u2012012
0u20t2012
0u20t2012
0u20t20t2
0u20t2012
0u20t2012
0u20t2012
0U20t2012
01t20120t2
0u20t20t2
0u20t20r2
0u20t20t2
01t20t20r2

426.24

426.24

t77.75
r77.75

600.00
600.00

60.53
60.53

108.67
108.67

2,000.00
2,000.00

61.91
670.7r
32.tr
23.62
91.80
24.r9
24.r9
96.53
85.04

243.r0
685.87
t62.14
17.t3
24.r9

2m.14
41.39
48.02

1,309.61
148.22
138.36

t,576.27
4,445.r7

389.63
327.72

31.57
285.25
23.46
32.75

165.04
. 15.19

28.54
19.95

141.42
73.98
61.75

Pager$

35222 CheckDatq 0U0U2012
GG/heating/I08 Pinon

35223 CheckDaie: LAUAID Vendor: 3305
PD/Entry Fee/Baker to VegaVTearn 253

352U CheckDate: 0U0U20t2
GG/lll WIst
CC/l15 S Robinson
CrG/303 E D
GG/108 Pinon
GG/3II ED
GG/200 W Teh blv
GGilll2s Capital Hills
GG/109 E Teh blv
PW8m Enterprise
PW800 Enterprise-shop
PDII29EF
City ParkVl 14 S Green
StrtVCurry/D
StrtY209 l/2 E Teh blv
Strtd333 l/2 E Teh blv
StrtV800 S Curry st #A
Traffic SignaU8Ol Mountain View
Wtr/358 E D
Wrr/100 CommWay
Wtr/l0l CommWay
Swr/880 Enterprise
Swr/800 Enterprise
Swr/800 Enterprise-Maintenance
A/409 Bryan ct
A/West end Teh airport
A/314 N Hayes st #B
AA.{E cor Teh airport
4/314 N Hayes st #c3
A/Dennison S/O Hwy 58
A/Teh airport 4
4/314 N Hayes st #50
N3l4 N Hayes st#50
A/314 N Hayes st

A/314 N Hayes
' N99991/2 Haves



City ofTehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descriotion

01201218 4/316 S Mojave
Ol20l2l9 A/3l4NHayesPAPI
01241216 LLDl3l8EEst
0r25r2rl5 tLDt329 v2D

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference

Printed: 0210112012 08:23
Detail

Check AmountInvoice Date

0u20t2012
0u20t2012
0112412012
0u25t20t2

Check Total:

Verizon Wireless
0lll3l20l2
0!t3t2012
0v20t20t2
0ut8t20t2
0ul3t20l2
0U20t2012
0Ut8t20t2
0Ul3t20t2

Check Total:

Report Total:

CheckNo: 35225 CheckDate: 0U0U2012 Vendor: 3011
1048202427 I GG/mobilebroadband
1U82024272 Finance/mobilebroadband
1050411203 I Wtr/mobile broadband
1M95277121 Wtr/mobilebroadband
1M8202427 3 Wtr/mobile broadband
1050411203 2 Swr/mobilebroadband
1M9527712 2 Swr/mobile broadband
1M8202427 4 Swr/mobile broadband

44.69
69.51
86.53

100.21
r2,u6.90

38.01
38.01
15.01

15.01

15.01

15.01

15.01

15.01

166.08

r51586.17

eage I



City of Tehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descrintion

436158107979 A/hdx4 mc 900
SFMKTNC?6 A/xps 8300 Dell pc

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference

Printed: ou0ll20l2 t4:29
Detail

Check Arnount

121.36
99.27
14.00

, 17.72
52.40

200.00
278.40

2,019.40
530.88

39.81
53.09

t66.43
159.27
100.00
39.54
94.50

388.00
800.00
,{0.00

450.00
90.00

. 43.96
15.78
I1.28
tr.28

781.59
2,462.44

100.00
27.72
50.00
10.00

I I 1.55
I15.55
69.90
15.17
4.36

70.33
r,25t.45

10,906.43

r0906.43

Invoice Date

U.S. Ba* Corporate Payment SyCheckNo: 35226 CheckDate: 0U0U2012 Yendor: 2940
6040239 GG/coaster occasional sofa table Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
1138567 Gc/cassette 12 pack Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
2689860 GG/l ntbk ac adapter Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
000024 GG/mealVKem Cnty Board of Trade r*cct. No. 3333 G. Garrett
219 GG/snack pacUsoft drinkVparty tray Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
101000572 GG/mealVState of Coumtv Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
8236518 I GG/branded shirts Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
25249 GG/branded merchandisey'logo design Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
074267 GG/mealVbranding mtg Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
39 GG/soft drinkVpp plateVwater/brand Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
8236518 2 GG/branded shirts Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
8281496 GG/squall jacket/return status Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
82365183 GG/branded shirts Acct. No. 9510 C. Ki*
OlMl2 Financey'annual membership Acct. No. 3341 H. Chung
l228ll PWcleaning supplies Acct. No. 3790D. Wahlstrom
713 CD/CdDAG 2011 guidebook Acct. No. 3366 D. James

280382 PD/ink stick bundle Acct. No. 33741. Kermode
51316 PD/OS2-ll training/P. Graff Acct. No. 3374J. Kermode
Oll9l2 I PD/registratior/training Acct. No. 3374 L Kermode
0lWl22 PDlhotel reservation Acct. No. 33741. Kermode
242 PD/membership dueVBFINAA Acct. No. 3374J. Kermode
117877675 PD/power supply Acct. No. 3374 J. Kermode
99879029 PD/cable tripp lite Acct. No. 3374 J. Kermode
000008 2 CounciVmeals Acct. No. 3275E. Grimes
000003 CounciUmeals Acct. No. 3275E. Grimes
1275153 CounciUmeals & lodging Acct. No. 32758. Grimes
003665 StrtVrepairJpartV86 Ford R50 Acct. No. 3790D. Wahlstrom
0300 Bike Plar/meeting room Acct. No. 9510 C. Kirk
0000013 General Plan update/meals Acct. No. 3366 D. James
090698 Valley Shoulder Exten-HSlP/record feAcct. No. 3366 D. James
O8l4U Wtr/car wash Acct. No. 9309 J. Curry
3373W Swr/OWTPI/course packagdA.GamblAcct. No. 9309 J. Curry
338555 SwrrlVTPOl/course packageAil. Misiubct. No. 9309 J. Curry
30057012 A/French roast coffee Acct. No. 2516T. Glasgow
077935 A/baking soda/sea salt/vinegar Acct. No. 2516T. Glasgow
M6262 A/pilot supply Acct. No. 2516 T. Glasgow

Acct. No. 2516T. Glasgow
Acct. No. 2516T. Glasgow

ru27t20tl
0U05t2012
0yry2012
ra2lt20ll
0ur0t20r2
0u19t20r2
tu27t20tl
ru26t20tr
0vr0t20r2
0llru20r2
0llr7l20r2
0Ur8t20l2
0vr9t20r2
0uMl20r2
tu28l20tl
0ytlt20l2
tu27t20tl
0113012012
0u19t20r2
0uMt20r2
0llwl20l2
ru28t20rl
0vo9t2012
0vl9t20t2
0u20t20r2
0ur7t20t2
ra28norr
0ut8t20t2
ta2720tr
ra29norr
0vt7t20t2
ru2v20rr
oura20r2
0u03t20t2
0v09t20r2
0Ut3t20t2
0vo3l20l2
0U05t2012

Check Total:

Report Total:

Paee.lO



City ofTehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Description

CheckNo: 35227 CheckDate:
01232012 PD/lodging/A.ilhompson

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference

0U0612012 Vendor: 351

Invoice Date

Holiday Inn Express Hotel & Su
01t23t20t2

Check Total:

W.M. Lyles Company
ru3U20rl

Check Total:

Report Total:

Printed: 0U0612012 09:09
Detail

ChecF Amount

341.58
341.58

335,968.20
335,968.20

336309.78

CheckNo: 35228 CheckDate: 0AMl20l2 Vendor: 3415
l231ll NewTreatmentPlant/Pav#5/Dec.31.201

rage | |



City ofTehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Description

CheckNo: 35305 CheckDate: 02/0U2012
06011-01E TR 6216 Bond Completion
04032-16 TR 6216 Bond Completion
04032-18 TR 6216 Bond Completion

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Reference Invoice Date

Printed: 0u0812012 08:39
Detail

Check Amount

Check No: 35304 Check Date: 04042012 Vendor: 2893 Cardnrember Service
3928228 GG/Xerox drum cartrdge Phaser 55fi)Acct. No. 8217 Business Card 0lll8l20l2
000035 PW/S 7/16 hex/nylocks Acct. No. 8217 Business Card 0lllll20l2
21523 City Hall fmt Office Rehab/refrig/s Acct. No. 8217 Business Card 0112512012

31118G CD/processing feey'successor agency Acct. No. 8803 Business Card 0lllll20l2
Check Total:

Check No:
73162

Check No:
18500

Check No:
0128125
0203126
0203127
0203128
02Mr29
0202t2ro
o203r215
0202121
0t28122
0r28r23
0128124
o2ul2rr
o2ut2l2
020/,r2t3
o20412r4

Check No:
r0320r2

Vendor: 2636

Vendor: 0372

Vendor: M33

Vendor: M34

280.00
10.73

955.36
50.00

r,296.09

22,725.n
3,403.25
7,992.86

34,t2t.lr

20,270.96
20,270.96

5,389.31
5,389.31

167.08
30.70

r,251.85
61.15
15.05
19.37
0.30

14.97
t7.65

103.09
196.86

4,372.30
21.26
22.16
21.26

6,315.05

t3,489.67
13,489.67

12,947.23
63,312.23
76,259.46

157,141.65

CheckNo: 35310 CheckDate: 0A0A20n
l0l20l2 KemCountygatefees
lO22Ol2 Refuse contract

Yendor: 3452 Forma Engineering Inc.
0112512012
0112512012
0u2512012

Check Total:

Yendor: 211335306 Chec} Date: 040812012
A/100 Octane wholesale

3$fi CheckDate: 0U0U2012
IT/}IS ov frfrnt srv user license/75

35308 CheckDatq 0U0812012
StrtVll0 S Mill st
StrtVHig[way 202
StrtVHighway 202
StrtVHighway 202
StrtVcurry st/Walnut
StrtV326 E D st
StrtYHi ghway 202llate char ge

StrtY303 E ave D
StrtVTeh blv WO Green

StrtdlO3 Teh blv
StrtVl0l Teh blv #B
Wtr/Curry
I.I-DI 1347 Clasico dr PED
LLD/I I 15 Alder av PED
IJ-Dll4l5 Alder av PED

35309 ChechDate: 0?0E/2012
Recycling contract

Fuel Controls, Inc.
0u3012012

Check Total:

High Desert V[ireles Broadband
laou2oll

Check Total:

Southern California Edison
0u2812012
oa$12012
0u$12m2
oao3l20r2
02tMl20r2
0ao2l2012
oaMl20l2
oaw20r2
ou28l2012
olt28l20r2
0112812012
0uMl20r2
oaMl2012
o2tMl20l2
oaMl2012

Check Total:

Tehachapi Recycling, Inc.
0arc|2012

CheckTotal:

Tehachapi Sanitation
0?/rct2012
0?/rc12012

CheclTotal:

Report Total:

Yage lL



City of Tehachapi
User:delphina

Invoice No Descrintion

CheckNo: 35311 CheckDate:
02062012 Consulantfee

Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by CheckNumber

Reference

02nV20l2 Vendor: 3280

Invoice Date

Nicholas Consulting
02t06t2012

Check Total:

Report Total:

Printed: 02108/20t2 08:59
D€tail

Check Amount

0.00

800.00
800.00

eage 13



C'TY OF TEHACHAPI

TREASURER,S REPORT

FY 2077-2012

BANKACCOUNTS

General Checking
Water Deposit Trust
AD 83-1/87-1, Tucker
AD 89-3
RDA Checking
Payroll
AFLAC Flex Spending
Airport key DeposiVCr Card Purch
Ashtown Water Escrow
199412004 Refunding Bond
cFD 90-1
RDA 2OO7

RDA 2OO5

LAIF

INVESTMENTS

Various Money Market Funds
Govt. Securities-Fed Farm Cr Bk
Govt. Securities-Fed Home Ln Bk
Various Certificates of Deposit
Federal Hm Ln Bank/Fannie Mae
* Loaned to Wtr/Swr to pay-off COP20O0

O:Flmme/lMslmgnvFYml 1-12 Treas.ReD.Now

Institution
Bank of the Sierra
Bank of the Sierra
Bank of the Sierra
Bank of the Sierra
Bank of the Sierra
Bank of the West
Bank of the West
Bank of the West
Bank of the West
Bank of New York
Union Bank
Bank of New York
Bank of New York
State of California

Total Funds in Banks

Morgan Stanley (2)
Morgan Stanley (2)
Morgan Stanley (2)
Morgan Stanley (2)
BNY-Custodian (3) t

Total Investments

TOTAL PORTFOLIO

Acctf
21002-06457
21 002-08503
21 004-801 93
21002-81054
21 002-1 8650
709-03't215
709-039747
709-029821
cD 709-000-855969
87051 3-87051 7
67170669300-308
870951t52t53/54
870711-16
98-1 5-91 4

'117-067378-235

117-067378-235
117-067378-235
117-067378-235

76214906

813rl2017
377,630.94

92,10't.88
87,474.32
2,590.77

22,077.02
49,644.41
12,808.29
50,876.54

106,148.99
0.00

89,552.16
615,401.65
596,929.87

1 1 ,413,764.06

9l30l20rt
833,002.83

96,371.88
87,483.80

1,489.36
22,077.76
50,363.65
13,854.93
88,150.46

1 06,1 48.99
0.00

20,583.81
615,401.65
596,929.87

1 1 ,213,764.06

rol3tl20tt
786,350.75

90,921.88
87,493.28

1,489.36
22,078.50
50,342.65
14,210.63

1 17 ,112.01
1 06,1 48.99
184,759.39
20,583.81

615,401.65
596,929.87

10,824,888.17

ttl30l20tL
584,995.13
94,081.88
87,502.76
46,762.75
22,079.24
50,333.65
14,921.32

149,832.64
106,148.99

0.00
20,583.81

1,002,336.65
957,505.53

12,524,888.17

t2l3rl20rt
2,016,409.39

96,501.88
87,509.44
37,226.11
22,079.41
50,324.65
14,124.73
28,609.s0

106,148.99
0.00

20,583.81
615,401.65
577,854.28

12,224,888.17

r13112072
479,322.68
91,260.00
87,515.27
32,378.96
22,079.41
50,101.75
14,144.86
56,608.43

106,330.57
0.00

171,927.16
61s,401.65
577,854.28

13,535,751.23

13,5't7,000.90 13,745,623.05 13,51q710^93 15,661,972.52 15,897,662.01 15,840,67625

5,801.79 6,872.24 452,118.08
538,000.00 538,000.00 538,OOO.OO
510,000.00 510,000.00 51o.ooo.oo

531.12 516,208.39 516,208.39
538,000.00 538,000.00 538.OOO.OO
510.000.00 0.00 0.00

1 ,1 66,936.35 1 ,1 66,936.35 735,936.35 735,936.35 735,936.35 735,936.35
1,021,250.00 1,021,250.00 1,02't,25o.OO 1,031,875.00 1,031,875.00 1,031,875.00
1 ,?98,996.00 1 ,299,996.90 1 ,298,906.09 1,??8,gog.og 1 ,108,4e8.66 1 ;1os;;e8.664,479,994.14 4,481,064.59 4,495 .+o

17,99



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJEGT:

COUNCIL REPORTS
AGENDA SECTION: FINANCE DIRECTOR

MEETING DATE: February 21,2012

HONORABLE MAYOR GRIMES AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

Hannah Ghung, Finance Director

February 14,2012

Investment Policy

BACKGROUND

California Government Code Section 536a6(a) requires council members to review and approve the
Investment Policy each year. The only change made to the current policy is the replacement of the
Redevelopment Agency Fund with the RDA Successor Agency.

OPTIONS

Approve the Investment Policy with above mentioned change.
Make other change(s) to the existing investment policy.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the amended Investment Policy.

1.

2.
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF TEHACHAPI ADOPTING AN
INVESTMENT POLICY AND REPEALING
RESOLUTTON NO. 04-11

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of California has declared that the

deposit and investment of public funds by local officials and local agencies is an issue

of statewide concern (California Government Code Sections 53600.6 and 53630.1; and

WHEREAS, the legislative body of a local agency may invest surplus monies not

required for the immediate necessities of the local agency in accordance with the

provisions of California Government Code Sections 5921,16249.1 and 53600 et seq.;

and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer of the City of Tehachapi shall annually prepare and

submit a statement of investment policy and such policy, and any changes thereto,

shall be considered by the City Council at a public meeting in accordance with the

provisions of California Government Code Section 53646(a).

NOW THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of

Tehachapi as follows:

1. That the Investment Policy, as contained in Exhibit "A" attached hereto

and made a part hereof, is adopted.



2. That Resolution No. 04-11 is hereby repealed.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of

Tehachapithis 21"t day of February, 2012 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ED GRIMES, Mayor
of the City of Tehachapi, California

ATTEST:

DENISE JONES, CMC
City Clerk of the City of Tehachapi, California

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duty and regularly adopted by

the City Council of the City of Tehachapi at a regular meeting thereof held on February

21,2012.

DENISE JONES, CMC
City Clerk of the City of Tehachapi, Califomia

2



1.

EXHIBIT A

CITY OF TEHACHAPI INVESTMENT POLICY

POLICY:

It shall be the policy of the City of Tehachapi to invest funds in the manner
which will:

(a) Provide the maximum security while meeting the

daily cash flow demands of the City and achieve a return

on investment; and

(b) Conform to all statutes governing the investment of

City of Tehachapi funds.

SCOPE:

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City of
Tehachapi as identified in the City's audited Annual Financial Report, with
the exception of those financial assets governed by bond indentures or
bond resolutions. The following is a list of funds included:

(a) General Fund
(b) Special Revenue Funds
(c) Capital Projects Funds
(d) Enterprise Funds
(e) Special District Funds
(f) RDA Successor Agency Fund
(g) Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund

PRUDENCE:

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances
then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence
exercise in the management of their own affairs; not for speculation, but
for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as welt as
the probable income to be derived. The standard of prudence to be used
by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor', standard (ccc
553600.3) and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall

2.

3.

3



4.

portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures
and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of
personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market
price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a
timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse
developments.

OBJECTIVES:

As specified in CGC 553600.5, when investing, reinvesting, purchasing,
acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing public funds, the primary
objectives, in priority order, of the investment activities will be:

1. Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost
objective of the investment program. Investments of the City
of Tehachapi shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to
ensure the preservation of principal.

2. Liquidity: The investment poftfolio shall remain
sufficiently liquid to enable the City of Tehachapi to
meet all operating requirements which might be
reasonably anticipated.

3. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio
shall be designed to attain a return throughout budgetary
and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk
constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORIW:

Authority to manage the investment program is derived from California
Government Code Sections 53600, et seq. Management responsibility for
the investment program is hereby delegated to the Treasurer (ccc
s53607), who shall establish procedures for the operation of the
investment program consistent with this investment policy. Such
procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons
responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an
investment transaction except as provided under the terms oitnis policy
and the procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be
responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of
controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials. Under the
provisions of the California Government Code Section 53600.3, the
persons authorized to make investment decisions on behalf of the City of
Tehachapi are trustees and fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor
standard.

5.

4



6.

7.

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain
from personal business activity that could conflict or appear to conflict with
the proper execution of the investment policy, or which could impair their
ability to make impartial investment decisions.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS:

The Treasurer will maintain a list of financial institutions, selected on the
basis of credit worthiness, financial strength, experience and minimal
capitalization authorized to provide investment services. In addition, a list
will also be maintained of approved security broker/dealers selected by
credit worthiness who are authorized to provide investment and financial
advisory services in the State of California. No public deposit shall be
made except in a qualified public depository as established by state laws.

For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the
Treasurer shall select only brokers/dealers who are licensed and in good
standing with the California Department of Securities, the Securities and
Exchange Commissions, the National Association of Securities Dealers or
other applicable self-regulatory organizations. Before engaging in
investment transaction with a broker/dealer, the Treasurer shall have
received from said firm a signed Certification Form. This form shall attest
that the individual responsible for the City of Tehachapi's account w1h that
firm has reviewed the City of Tehachapi's Investment Policy and that the
firm understands the policy and intends to present investment
recommendations and transactions to the City of Tehachapi that are
appropriate under the terms and conditions of the Investment policy.

AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS:

The City of rehachapi having money in a sinking fund or surplus money in
its treasury not required for the immediate necessities of the City may
invest any portion of the money that it deems wise or expedient in those
investments set forth below as empowered by California Government
Code Sections 16249.1, 59601 and 53635 (as further restricted by the
City of Tehachapi):

A. United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds.

B. local Agency Investment Fund administered by the
California State Treasurer (LAIF).

c. obligations issued by Agencies or Instrumentality of the US
Government.

8.



9.

D. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by federally or
state chartered banks or associations. Not more than 30%
of surplus funds can be invested in certificates of deposit.

E. Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified
management companies (Money Market Mutual Funds)
investing in the securities and obligations authorized by
CGC 553601 et seq. Such Funds must carry the highest
rating of at least two of the three largest national rating
agencies. Not more than 15"/o of surplus funds can be
invested in Money Market Mutual Funds.

F. Funds held under the terms of a Trust Indenture, or other
contract, or agreement may be invested according to the
provisions of those indentures or agreements.

Also, see CGC S53601 for a detailed summary of the limitations and
special conditions that apply to each of the above listed investment
securities. CGC 553601 is included by reference in this investment policy
except as further restricted by the City of Tehachapi.

Prohibited Investments: Under the provisions of ccc Ss9601.6 and
553631.5, the City of Tehachapi shall not invest any funds covered by this
Investment Policy in inverse floaters, range notes, interest-only strips that
are derived from a pool mortgages or any security that could result in zero
interest accrual if held to maturity.

MAXIMUM TERM TO MATURIW:

No investment shall be made which, at the time of the investment, has a
term remaining to maturity in excess of five years. The City Council may
grant express authority to make an investment either specifically or as a
part of an investment program that exceeds the five-year maximum, as
long as that authority is granted no less than three months prior to the
investment.

COLLATERALIZATION:

All certificates of deposits must be collateralized by u.S. Treasury
Obligations. Collateral must be held by a third party trustee and valued on
a monthly basis.

SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY:

All security transactions entered into by the City of Tehachapi shall be

10.
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conducted on delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. All securities
purchased or acquired shall be delivered to the City of Tehachapi by book
entry, physical delivery, or by third party custodial agreement as required
by CGC S53601.

12. DIVERSIFICATION:

The City of Tehachapi will diversify its investments by security type and
institution. Investments shall be diversified to eliminate the risk of loss
resulting from over concentration of investments in a specific maturity, a
specific issuer (except the U.S. Treasury) or a specific class of securities.
Diversification strategies shall be determined and revised periodically. In

establishing specific diversification strategies, the following general
policies and constraints shall apply:

(a) lnvestment maturity dates shall be matched
versus liabilities to avoid undue concentration
in a specific maturity sector.

(b) Maturities selected shall provide for stability of
income and liquidity.

(c) Disbursement and payroll dates shall be
covered through investment maturities,
marketable U.S. Treasury bills or other cash
equivalent instruments such as money market
mutual funds.

Note: Investments in LAIF shall be deemed as meeting the
diversif ication requi rement.

REPORTING:

ln accordance with ccc S53646(b)(1), the Treasurer shail submit to each
member of the City Council and the City Manager a quarterly investment
report. The quarterly report shall be submitted within 30 days following
the end of the quarter covered by the report. The report shall include a
complete description of the portfolio, the type of investments, the issuers,
maturity dates, par values and the current market values of each
component of the portfolio, including funds managed for the City of
Tehachapi by third party contracted managers. The report will also
include the source of the portfolio valuation. As specified in ccc
s536a6(e), if all funds are placed in LAIF, FDlc-insured accounts, in a
county investment pool or any combination of these, the foregoing report
elements may be replaced by copies of the most recent statements from
such institutions. The report must also include a statement that (1) all

13.
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14.

investments are in full compliance with the Investment Policy, with any
exception disclosed and, (2) the City of Tehachapi will meet its
expenditure obligations for the next six months, as required by CGC
553646 (b)(2) and (3) respectively. The Treasure shall assure that a
complete and timely record of all investment transactions is maintained.

INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION:

The Investment Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City of
Tehachapi. Moreover, the Policy shall be reviewed at a public meeting on
an annual basis, and all modifications must be approved by the City
Council.

8
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TEHACHAPI CITY COUNCIL
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
COMMUNITY TRANSIT NEEDS

Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of the City

of Tehachapi at 6:00 p.m., or thereafter, on Tuesday, February 21,2012, at the BeeKay

Theatre, 110 S. Green Street, Tehachapi, California, to consider possible unmet transit

needs for residents within the City of Tehachapi.

All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an

oppoftunity to be heard.

TEHACHAPI CITY COUNCIL

Dated:
Publish:

January 9,2012
January 17,2012

City Clerk of the City of T
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DATE:

SUBJECT:

GOUNCIL REPORTS
AGENDA SECTION: FINANGE

MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 21,2012

HONORABLE MAYOR GRIMES AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

HANNAH CHUNG, FINANCE DIRECTOR

FEBRUARY 15,2012

Public Hearing and Proposed Resolution Dealing with Transit Needs within the Gity

BACKGROUND

As part of the annual Public Transit Claim for Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds, it is
necessary to conduct a public hearing to receive public testimony concerning the transit needs within
the City.

City of Tehachapi provides transit service, Dial-A-Ride, through Kem Regional Transit. Utilizing two
buses, transit services are provided from 5:30am to 7:00pm, Monday thiough Friday within tne City
limits of Tehachapi and between the City and certain areas of the County. One bus runs from 5:30am
to 8:30am and 10:30am to 3:30pm. The other bus runs from 7:30am to 11:1Sam and 12:45pm to
7:00pm. The current one-way fares are as listed below:

General Public
Disabled
Chifdren 4 and under

Seniors (62 and over) $0.75
Youth (5 - 15) $0.75

$1.00
$0.75
Free

The average cost per rider from July, 2010 through June, 2011 is $21.97 and the subsidized cost per
rider during the same period is $21.20.

The City is required to adopt a resolution annually proving that "there are no areas within the C1y with
unmet public transit needs which could be reasonably met by expansion of the existing system or
establishment of a new system." This resolution also authorizes the City Manager to exetute and file
claims for TDA apportionment and allocations for Fy 2012-19.

FISCAL IMPACT
This resolution allows the City to file for TDA funds that are used both for transit needs and our public
roads. The TDA apportionment for the fiscal year 2011112 for the city was $462,2g0. tne
apportionment for the fiscal year 2012113 is not available yet.

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt the Resolution finding that there are no unmet transit needs that are reasonable to meet within
the City.

Page 1 of 1



City of Tehachapi
Tehachapi Dial-ARide

From July 1,2010 through June 30, 2011
OtTcNit{Dial A Rk€ Summary1G1 l.xlsllG11

Month Days of Service Operatinq Hours Ridership Mileage Fairbox Revenue $ Expenditure $
Cltv County ctw Countv City County Cltv Countv cih, Countv Citv CounW

Jul\ 22 176 76 477 477 1780.5 1780.5 381.45 381.45 9,157.30 o lR7 an

Auqus 22 22 176 76 463 463 1935.5 1935.5 379.77 379.77 9,513.36 9.513.36
Septembel 22 22 168 68 542.5 542.5 2190.5 2190.5 4fr6.13 436.13 9.257.85 9,257.8s

October 23 23 1U u 591 591 2398.5 2398.5 .l85.67 €5.67 8,879.85 8,879.85
Novembel 21 2'l 168 w 6s5 655 1973 1973 522.62 522.62 8,730.51 8.730.51
Decembe 23 23 1U 84 483.5 483.5 1947.5 1947.5 371.50 371.5 10,190.44 10,190.44

Januan 21 21 168 168 745 745 1988.5 1988.5 395.52 395.52 9.472.79 9,472.79
Februan 21 21 160 160 566.5 566.5 1929 1929 4$8.27 458.27 7.900.28 7,900.28

Marcl 23 23 184 184 713.5 713.5 2335.5 2335.5 573.94 573.94 9,598.08 9,598.08
Aori 21 21 168 168 549.5 549.5 663.5 AA2 6 428.32 428.32 8,970.42 8,970.42
Mar 21 21 168 168 499 499 2107.5 2't07.5 394.11 394.1 1 10,608.95 10,608.95

JUn€ 22 22 176 '176 380 380 2(x)0 2000 293.79 293.79 11,350.69 11.350.69
fotal 262 zoz 2.080 2.080 6,666 o.ooo 23.2sO 23.250 $5.121.09 s5.121.09 $1'l3,630.52 $1 1 3.630.52

\verage 2't.83 2't.83 173.33 173.33 555 ccc 1,937.6 1,537.46 $ 426.76 $ 426.76 $ 9,469.21 9.469.21

Davs Der Month Operatinq lrs oer Mo. Passengers per Month Miles oer Month \vo Fairbox Revenrre/Mo Avg. Expense/ Mo.

General Public Seniors Disabled Youth Total

Pasenocrcvithin zone J/VV zones vithin zone 3/VV zones vithin zone 3/W zones uithin zone l/W zones {on Pavinc
July 186 16 OT 10 OE ql 18 5Z 477

Augusl 163 17 61 z 83 4 bd 36 31 463
September 206 18 50 23 138 18 55 5€

October 215 ,to
61 38 180 18 591

November 230 17 7A 1 121 32 ,?E ?c occ
Decemb€r 158 21 58 72 29 93 4 43 4U

Januarv 138 15 oo to 72 JT 127 11 265 76
February 195 ,t4

66 10 /o ?A 141 o 22 567
March 236 26 103 18 122 z5 ,l 20 16 31 714
A0ril 175 17 73 an ZY 117 4 10 550
Mav 159 19 CU 4 VJ 17 125 4 30 499
JUne 118 15 50 o OY 4a 70 11 30 380
Total 2.176 2't3 757 88 1.OO2 331 1.349 120 632 6,666

2.388 8215 1,333 2,100
Percentage 36Yo 13o/o 20Yo 32o/o 1O0o/o

RIDERSHIP

OPERATIONAL CONTRACT COSTS

| 8"""d * T.t tErpfi"* I
Total Costperrider/Ride $ 21.97

1/6-4/ffi7t7

ContractCostperrider/Ride $ 17.0s
Subsidized Contracted Cost per Rider/ Ride $ 16.28

I;I I Y ONLY IOftrl
lyder/ATE nsurance ilainl Fuel Admin Storaqe GHP CETI Advertisinq Misc

Julv 7,209.55 403.04 730.01 712.20 '102.50 9.157.30
August 7,227.16 403.04 851.62 929.04 102.50 9,513.36

Seplember 6,952.51 384.72 876.20 941.92 102.50 9,257.85
October 6.917.55 3U.72 899.44 575.64 102.50 8,879.85

November 6.956.79 384.72 707.58 578.92 102.50 8,730.51
December 7,574.29 421.36 1,265.88 826.41 102.50 10,'t90.44
January 6,955.98 384.72 1,252.76 776.83 102.50 9.472.79
Februarv 5.742.40 238.40 1.311.72 505.26 102.50 7.900.28

March 6,603.76 274.16 't,494.72 1,122.94 102.50 9,598.08
Aoril 6,029.52 250.32 1,579.36 1.OO8.72 102.50 8,970.42
Mav 6.603.76 274.16 2.465.78 1,162.75 102.50 10,608.95
JUne 6,316.64 262.24 2,759.31 1 .910.00 102.50 11.350.69
Total 81,089.91 4,065.60 't6,194.38 11,050.63 0.00 1,230.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1 13.630.52

.66

Subsidized Cost per Rider / Ride $ 21.20



CITY OF
TEHACHAPI
LEGAL DEPARTMENT

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
CITY OF TEHACHAPI FINDING THAT THERE
NO UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS THAT
REASONABLE TO MEET WITHIN THE CITY.

WHEREAS, the City of Tehachapi City Council conducted a public hearing on

Tuesday, February 21,2012, to consider possible unmet transit needs within the City, and;

WHEREAS, the City of Tehachapi currently provides public transportation seruice

within the City of Tehachapi, and;

WHEREAS, the objectives of providing the public transportation system are to meet

the public need for limited cost transportation, to serve the mobility lim1ed population, and

to provide an altemative to private vehicle transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the City of Tehachapi City Council that,

after holding a duly adveftised public hearing and receiving public testimony, it finds there

are no areas within the City with unmet public transit needs which could be reasonably met

by expansion of the existing system or establishment of a new system.

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the

Kem County Council of Govemments in conjunction with the filing of claims for

Transportation Development Act Funds for Fiscal Year 2012-13 and that the city Manager

is authorized to execute said claims.

THE
ARE
ARE



CITY OF
TEHACHAPI
LEGAL DEPARTMENT

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Tehachapi this 21s'day

of February,2012.

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ED GRIMES, Mayor
of the City of Tehachapi,
California

ATTEST:

DENISE JONES, CMC
City Clerk of the City of Tehachapi, California

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly

adopted by the City Council of the City of Tehachapi at a regular meeting thereof

hefd on February 2'1,20'12.

DENISE JONES, CMC
City Clerk of the City of Tehachapi, California



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      CITY OF TEHACHAPI 
 

      ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

      Year Ended June 30, 2011 
 
 

 



 



City of Tehachapi 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
 PAGE 
  
 Independent Auditors’ Report 1 - 2 
 Management Discussion & Analysis  3 - 12 
  
 Basic Financial Statements:  
  Government-wide Financial Statements  
   Statement of Net Assets 13 
   Statement of Activities 14 - 15 
  Fund Financial Statements  
   Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 16 - 17 
   Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of 
   Net Assets 

 
18 

   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -  
   Governmental Funds 

 
19 - 20 

   Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
   Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

 
21 

   Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 22 - 23 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 24 - 25 
   Statement of Cash Flows  - Proprietary Funds 26 - 29 
   Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds 30 
  Notes to Financial Statements 31 - 57 
 
 Required Supplementary Information:  
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual:  
   General Fund 58 
   RDA Low and Moderate Housing 59 
  Notes to Required Supplementary Information 60 
  
 Supplementary Information:  
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual:  
   RDA Fund 61 
   Railroad Depot 62 
  Non-Major Governmental Funds:  
   Combining Balance Sheet 63 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 64 
  Non-Major Special Revenue Funds:  
   Combining Balance Sheet 65 - 67 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 68 - 70 
  Non-Major Capital Project Funds  
   Combining Balance Sheet 71 - 73 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 74 - 76 
  Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds 
 

77 - 78 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 12 and budgetary comparison information on pages 58 and 59 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Tehachapi’s financial statements as a whole.  The supplementary information, as listed in the table of 
contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.  The 
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

 
February 6, 2012
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
The management of the City of Tehachapi (“City”) provides a narrative overview and analysis of 
the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  The City encourages 
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements 
and notes to the financial statements which are included with this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

 The City’s net assets increased 7.7% to $37,296,603 as a result of this year’s operations. 
 Total City revenues, including program and general revenues, were $16,260,430 which is 

$1,712,294 more than the prior year. 
 Net assets in governmental funds increased $470,057, and net assets in business activities 

increased $2,194,981. 
 Governmental revenue was decreased by $107,125 to $8,951,522. 
 Governmental expense was increased by $386,115 to $8,728,179. 
 Revenues from business-type activities increased by $1,819,419 to $7,308,908. 
 Expenses from business-type activities increased by $232,945 to $5,113,927. 
 General fund revenue was increased by $169,479 to $5,262,894.  
 General fund balance as of June 30, 2011 is $5,814,682 an increase of $743,717 from the 

prior year.  
 
Overview of Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements.  The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of: 
 

1. The Basic Financial Statements, which include the Government-wide Financial 
Statements, Fund Financial Statements, and Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Required Supplementary Information 
3. Supplementary Information 

 
The Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The focus of government-wide financial statements is on the overall financial position and 
activities of the government as a whole.  These financial statements are constructed around the 
concept of a primary government.  The primary government is then broken down into two 
different activities, governmental activities and business-type activities.   
 
The governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, general 
administration and Redevelopment Agency (RDA).  Although the RDA is a separate agency, 
because it functions as part of the City and the City Council serves as the RDA governing board, 
the RDA is included in the governmental activities column.  The services under governmental 
activities are supported by taxes and by specific program revenue. 
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The major notable event to most cities in the State of California after the fiscal year end 2010/11 
is the elimination of all redevelopment agencies.  The California Supreme Court largely upheld 
AB 26 (which provides for the winding up and dissolution of redevelopment agencies), 
invalidated AB 27 (which provided for an alternative voluntary redevelopment program), and 
held that AB 26 may be severed from AB 27 and will be enforced independently.  As a result of 
the Supreme Court’s decision, on February 1, 2012, all redevelopment agencies were considered 
dissolved, consequently the cities do not have the option of making remittance payments to 
enable the continued operation of redevelopment agencies.  The City opted to become the 
successor agency for the Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency effective February 1, 2012. 
 
The business-type activities include Refuse, Water, Sewer, Transit and Airport funds.  Unlike 
governmental services, these services are supported by charges paid by users based on the 
amount of the service they use.    
 
The basic financial statements are comprised of the following: 
 

 Statement of Net Assets 
 

The Statement of Net Assets is prepared using accounting principles that are similar to 
commercial enterprises.  The purpose of the statement of net assets is to attempt to report all 
assets held and liabilities owed by the City.  The difference between the City’s total assets 
and total liabilities is labeled as net assets and this difference is similar to the total owners’ 
equity presented by a commercial enterprise.  Although the purpose of the City is not to 
accumulate net assets, in general, increases or decreases of net assets may serve as an 
indicator of the financial position of the City. 

 
 Statement of Activities  

 
The purpose of the statement of activities is to present the revenues and expenses of the City.  
Again, the items presented on the statement of activities are measured in a manner similar to 
the approach used by a commercial enterprise in that revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized when incurred.  The difference between revenue and expense is 
called net income in commercial enterprise whereas it is called change in net assets in the 
City’s financial report. 
 

Fund Financial Statements 
 
Unlike government-wide financial statements, the focus of fund financial statements is directed 
to specific activities of the City rather than the City as a whole.  All of the City’s funds are 
divided into two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary funds.  
 
Fund financial statements provide detailed information about each of the City’s most significant 
funds, called major funds.  The concept of major fund, and the determination of which funds are 
major, was established by Governmental Accounting Standard Boards (GASB)  34 and replaces 
the concept of combining like funds and presenting them in total.  Instead, each major fund is 
presented individually, while all non-major funds are summarized and presented in a single 
column. 
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Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. 
 
The City of Tehachapi maintains 27 individual governmental funds (active funds only).  
Information is presented separately in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the 
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditure and Changes in Fund Balances for the 
General Fund, RDA Low and Moderate Housing Fund, RDA Fund and Railroad Depot capital 
project fund which are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 23 governmental funds 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.   
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The only type of Proprietary funds the City of Tehachapi maintains is enterprise funds.  The 
Refuse, Water, Sewer, Transit and Airport funds are presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Proprietary funds provide the same type of information 
as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.  The City considers Water, 
Sewer, Refuse and Airport funds to be major funds. The Transit fund is categorized as a non-
major proprietary fund. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information.  The required supplementary information includes 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan Schedule and budgetary comparison 
schedules for major governmental funds. 
 
Overview of the City’s Financial Position and Operations 
 
The City’s overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized based 
on the information included in the government-wide financial statements.  Net assets may serve 
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over time as an indicator of a government’s financial position.  For the City of Tehachapi, assets 
exceeded liabilities by $37,296,603 at June 30, 2011. 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net assets is in investments in capital assets.  The Investments in 
Capital Assets (e.g. land, infrastructures, buildings, machineries and equipments) Net of Related 
Debt was increased to $20,728,668 (56% of total net assets) from $19,333,025.  The increase 
was mainly due to the reclassification of a loan granted by RDA to the Water Fund.  Initially, the 
Water Fund had borrowed $1.37 million from RDA to aid in financing a portion of a water 
capacity increase related project.  The total cost of which is approximately $5 million.  However, 
since the water capacity increase project also accommodates the anticipated business and 
population growth within the RDA project area, it is a logically sound decision to convert such a 
loan into a project cost expense.  The reclassification of the loan was justified based on the 
acreage the RDA project area covers compared to the rest of the City. 
 
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to residents; accordingly, these assets are 
not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investments in capital assets are reported 
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities.  
 
The restricted fund balance was decreased from the prior year by $438,299.  The above 
mentioned re-classification of the loan for the water capacity increase project had contributed the 
main reason for the restricted fund decrease.  The bond proceeds balance in the RDA which has 
been used for any RDA capital projects are categorized as restricted funds.  
 
The unrestricted fund balance was increased to $5,844,403 from $4,136,709.  This increase was 
attributed to the fund balance increase in the General Fund and payments from Federal and State 
authorities for various grants.  Grant funds are typically received upon completion of capital 
projects.  During the course of capital project construction, generally the General Fund advances 
funds to capital project funds to pay for construction costs.  Once grants are received, the 
advanced amounts are paid; consequently, to replenish the unrestricted funds. 
 

Summary of Statement of Net Assets 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and Other Assets 14,898,206 16,111,558 4,548,831 4,141,736 19,447,037 20,253,294
Capital Assets 25,201,144 24,002,430 15,899,380 16,343,247 41,100,524 40,345,677
     Total Assets 40,099,350 40,113,988 20,448,211 20,484,983 60,547,561 60,598,971

Current Liabilities 1,336,429 1,317,000 848,695 1,284,622 2,185,124 2,601,622
Long-term Liabilities 17,007,783 17,511,907 4,058,051 5,853,877 21,065,834 23,365,784
     Total Liabilities 18,344,212 18,828,907 4,906,746 7,138,499 23,250,958 25,967,406

Investments in Capital, 8,469,619 9,392,632 12,259,049 9,940,393 20,728,668 19,333,025
  Net of related debt
Restricted 6,825,505 9,756,061 3,898,027 1,405,770 10,723,532 11,161,831
Unrestricted 6,460,014 2,136,388 (615,611) 2,000,321 5,844,403 4,136,709
     Total Net Assets 21,755,138 21,285,081 15,541,465 13,346,484 37,296,603 34,631,565

TotalBusiness-Type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities
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The City started capturing its capital assets in governmental funds beginning fiscal year 
2002/2003.   In accordance with GASB 34, the City was not required to retroactively capture the 
capital assets because the City fell under the Implementation Phase III due to the size of its 
revenue in fiscal year 1999/2000. 

 
Statement of Activities 

 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenue

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 821,079              -                          5,692,378       4,995,863       6,513,457         4,995,863         
Operating contribution & Grant 592,393              -                          158,105          128,881          750,498            128,881            
Capital Grants & Contribution 1,742,770           779,867              -                     -                     1,742,770         779,867            

General Revenues:
Property taxes 3,199,699           2,868,727           -                     3,199,699         2,868,727         
Sales Taxes 1,421,347           1,447,323           -                     1,421,347         1,447,323         
Other Taxes 2,354,582           898,509              -                     2,354,582         898,509            
License and permits 1,176,769           -                     -                        1,176,769         
Other sources of funds 798,631              -                     -                        798,631            
Miscellaneous 30,582                1,002,569           105,946          249,839          136,528            1,252,408         
Interest 109,028              164,720              32,521            36,438            141,549            201,158            
Transfers (1,319,958)         (78,468)              1,319,958       78,468            -                        -                        

8,951,522           9,058,647           7,308,908       5,489,489       16,260,430       14,548,136       

Expenses
Primary Government

General Government 2,679,826           1,804,904           -                     2,679,826         1,804,904         
Administration 1,062,187           -                     -                        1,062,187         
Public Works & Planning 2,233,054           2,240,441           -                     2,233,054         2,240,441         
Police 2,524,093           2,154,979           -                     2,524,093         2,154,979         
Fire Department 63,431                -                     -                        63,431              
Council 48,314                -                     -                        48,314              
City Clerk 66,734                -                     -                        66,734              
Treasurer 22,318                -                     -                        22,318              
Parks 3,314                  -                     -                        3,314                
Pass-throughs 396,866              396,866            -                        
Interest 894,340              875,442              -                     894,340            875,442            

Business-type Activities
Refuse -                          971,974          1,038,916       971,974            1,038,916         
Water -                          1,828,318       1,541,337       1,828,318         1,541,337         
Sewer -                          1,465,372       1,556,259       1,465,372         1,556,259         
Transit -                          146,448          128,956          146,448            128,956            
Airport -                          701,815          615,514          701,815            615,514            

   Total Expense 8,728,179           8,342,064           5,113,927       4,880,982       13,842,106       13,223,046       

Change in Net Assets 223,343              716,583              2,194,981       608,507          2,418,324         1,325,090         
Net Assets at beginning of yr 21,285,081         20,568,498         13,346,484     13,000,707     34,631,565       33,569,205       
Prior Period Adj 246,714              -                     (262,730)        246,714            (262,730)          
Net Assets at end of year 21,755,138         21,285,081       15,541,465   13,346,484   37,296,603       34,631,565      

TotalGovernmental 
Activities

Business Type
Activities
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Governmental Activities 
 
Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $470,057 thereby accounting for 18% 
of the total growth in the City’s net assets mainly due to $484,695 reduction in liabilities in 
governmental funds.   
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
The City operates five business-type activities.  These activities are captured in Refuse, Water, 
Sewer, Transit and Airport funds.  Of the total $2,665,038 City wide net assets increase, 
$2,194,981 (82% of total increase) was attributed to the business-type activities.  The reduction 
in liability by making principal payments on outstanding debts and reclassification of the RDA 
loan was the main factor for the net assets increase.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements.  Please note that unlike the Government-Wide financial 
statements discussed previously, the fund statements are reflected on a modified accrual basis. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
As of June 30, 2011, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of 
$13,452,448.  This number shows approximately 8% ($1,202,708) fund balance decrease from 
the prior year.  Again, the reclassification of the loan from RDA to the Water Fund for the 
capacity project resulted in this decrease.  This fund balance is available for spending on the 
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors; although, 18% of the total 
governmental fund balance is dedicated for specific purposes such as street and road 
maintenance, various capital projects associated with special fees collected and other capital 
projects paid by specific grants. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund was $3,449,467 which included $1,045,989 of 
advances made to other funds such as Airport, special district funds and various capital project 
funds.  Although the amount is labeled as advances, there is a possibility that the General Fund 
may end up writing them off in a manner of an operating transfer as happened in the past.  The 
General Fund wrote off an outstanding loan balance of $359,533 in fiscal year 2000/01 for the 
Airport fund expecting the Airport fund would self sustain from that time on.  However, the 
Airport Fund still has not generated enough revenues to support its expenses.   
 
The fund balance, after the deduction of any outstanding advances made to other funds, will be 
used to pay for various City services such as police, contracted fire, public works and the City’s 
general operations.   
 
The Redevelopment fund has a total fund balance of $1,056,725 of which $959,386 is reserved 
for outstanding 2005 & 2007 RDA Tax Increment Revenue Bonds.  The decrease of $2,997,988 
in the RDA fund balance was from the use of bond proceeds for various capital projects such as 
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downtown and infrastructure improvement including blight elimination and water capacity 
increase project. 
 
Twenty percent of 2005 & 2007 RDA Tax Revenue Allocation Bond proceeds were allocated to 
the RDA Low and Moderate Housing Fund and as a result, this fund was presented as one of the 
major governmental funds.   To date, no major housing projects have occurred using the housing 
fund. 
 
Proprietary Fund 
 
Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer funds at the end of the year are negative $330,689 
and positive $157,209 respectively.  The negative balance in unrestricted net assets of the Water 
fund was caused by the construction of two water tanks (T & T tanks) back in 2008.  This project 
was constructed using internal borrowing instead of outside financing sources in the form of 
bonds.  In return, the Water Fund is to pay back the loan principal over time utilizing future 
connection fees.  This decision resulted in over a half-million dollar cost savings to the Water 
Fund since the internal funding eliminates the need to pay issuance costs as well as interest 
payment associated with issuing bonds.  In addition, by not having additional bonds outstanding, 
the water fund will have more leverage when issuing bonds in the future to pay for bigger capital 
projects.   
 
Also, another sound decision that benefited the City as a whole by more than half a million 
dollars is the refunding of 2000 Certificates of Participation (2000 COP) with an outstanding 
balance of $1,365,600 using an internal Investment Fund.  The savings are recognized as 
follows: 
 

 The City’s investment fund will earn approximately 1.5% higher interest rate than when 
investing funds with outside financial institutions. 

 The Water and Sewer fund will pay approximately 1.5% lower interest rate for the 
remaining term of the loan which is for the next six years. 

 The Water and Sewer fund did not have to pay for issuance costs, such as underwriter 
discounts, bond attorneys’ fees, document-printing costs, and other miscellaneous fees 
associated with issuing bonds.  

 
The net assets of the Sewer fund were increased by $1,385,057 from the prior year.  
Approximately 36% of the Sewer fund balance increase was from Sewer connection fees.  The 
restricted net assets in Sewer fund, $3,583,785, will be used for the construction and expansion 
of a new sewer plant over the next two to three years. 
 
As of June 30, 2011, the Airport Fund owes $724,522 to General Fund and this loan was a result 
of continuous deficits in Airport Fund operations. 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
A detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the year ended June 30, 2011 is presented as 
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements.  The final 
budget amounts are different from those presented in the 2010/11 – 2014/15 original five-year 
budget documents.  It is due to changes that occurred between the original budget and the mid-
year budget adjustments. 
 

Variance
Original Final 2010/11 Actual vs.
Budget Budget Actual Finanl Budget

Revenues incl. Other Sources 4,607,545 4,746,774 5,262,894 516,120

Expenditures incl. Other Uses 4,605,176 4,728,276 4,612,277 115,999

  Net changes in fund balances 2,369 18,498 650,617 632,119

Fund Balance Beginning (Adjusted) 5,164,065 5,164,065 5,164,065 0

Fund Balance - Ending 5,166,434 5,182,563 5,814,682 632,119  
 
 
Overall, the General Fund actual ending fund balance is $632,119 more than what was budgeted 
in the final budget.  The major contributions to positive revenue variance are from property tax 
revenue, $50,591, sales tax, $225,568, transient occupancy tax, $119,780, motor vehicle license 
fee, $31,889, and landscape and construction charges, $73,829. 
    
The major reasons for the favorable variance in expenditures are due to the reimbursements from 
the Tehachapi Unified School District for a School Resource Officer, $19,443; reduction in 
operation cost, $69,485; and under spent legal cost, $27,072.  
 
The departments in General Fund which contributed a major positive variance to the total 
expenditure are General Government $62,321; Finance $10,094; Public Works, $31,095; and 
Community Development department, $45,809.  Contrarily, the major unfavorable variance in 
the General Fund is from the engineering expenses not subject to reimbursement, $21,001 and 
overhead allocation to other funds, $21,102.  The budgeted allocation was $222,526; however, 
because of less actual spending in the General Fund, the actual allocated cost was $201,424 
resulting $21,102 of unfavorable variance.  
 
During the fiscal year 2010/11, the economy stayed at a status quo from prior years.  In spite of 
the status of economy downturn in general, the City actually increased fund balances in most 
major funds.  The General Fund was greatly benefited from sales tax generated by Love’s Truck 
Stop and it experienced a slight growth in sales taxes in general.  Another substantial General 
Fund revenue increase was from the transient occupancy tax which is also known as lodging tax.  
This is due to additional payments received from one of the hotels for their prior year’s 
delinquent accounts. 
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There was $169,477 increase in General Fund revenue but the expenditures in the same fund 
were also increased by $245,987.  However, staff managed to increase the fund balance in 
General Fund by $76,510.  The major General Fund revenues that contributed to a favorable 
revenue variance are sales tax, $265,792 and transient occupancy tax, $249,180.   
 
 
CAPITAL & DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land 2,865,833 3,893,063 6,758,896

   Total non-depreciable assets 2,865,833 3,893,063 6,758,896

Depreciable Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Infrastructure, Machinery, CIP 22,335,311 12,006,317 34,341,628

   Total depreciable assets-net 22,335,311 12,006,317 34,341,628

   Total Capital Assets 25,201,144 15,899,380 41,100,524  
 
The City of Tehachapi’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2011, amounts to $41,100,524 (net of accumulated depreciation) which 
is a $754,847 increase from fiscal year 2009/10.  This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, improvements, machineries and equipments, roads, sidewalks, airport runways, water 
and sewer systems. 
 
Additional information on the City of Tehachapi’s capital assets can be found in Note 2-C. 
 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

Bonds 16,559,109 3,969,456 20,528,565
Loans 70,589 70,589
Capital Leases 741,509 336,025 1,077,534
Compensated absences 245,735 76,434 322,169

   Total Long-Term Liabilities 17,546,353 4,452,504 21,998,857  
 
 
The City of Tehachapi’s total long term debt was decreased by $2,275,397 during the current 
fiscal year.  This decrease was mainly from making payments on principals of various 
outstanding debts without incurring additional debt as well as from internal refunding of 2000 
COP as mentioned earlier. 
 



12  

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 15 
percent of its total assessed valuation.  The RDA Revenue Allocation Bonds are not general 
obligation debt. 
 
 
NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS 
 
In June, 2011, the Council adopted the 2011/12 through 2015/16 five-year budget, with total 
appropriations of $17,360,973 in fiscal year 2011/12.  The following factors were taken into 
consideration for the next fiscal year budget: 
 

 0.7% cost of living increase was granted for all employees; however, there will still be no 
merit increases at this time. 

 The 2011/12 General Fund revenue budget ($4,607,545) was projected at $360,910 less 
than the actual revenue received in 2010/11.  A $100,000 of COPS grant is not included 
in this budget since there is no certainty that the State will pay for such a grant.  The 
$114,080 reduction in lodging tax was due to nonexistence of delinquent tax payment 
from a hotel.  Finally, no police grant was budgeted since $87,493 grant received in 
2010/11 was just a one-time grant. 

 The 2012/13 General Fund expenditure budget ($4,861,961) was projected at $249,686 
more than the actual expenditure in 2010/11. 

 Twenty equivalent dwelling units (EDU) of connections were considered for any 
development related fees such as water and sewer connections, facilities impact, traffic 
mitigation and park and recreation capital improvement. 

 Various capital projects were included in this budget and they are: 
 

o Purchase of snow plow $37,000 
o Service body vehicle, $70,000 
o Water Radio Meters Replacement, $50,000 
o Water Banking Program, $120,000 
o New Sewer Plant $4,250,000. 

 
As always, this budget was put together in a very conservative manner.  Although our City was 
fortunate enough to generate a positive fund balance, the City is not putting its guard down in 
securing its financial security.  For example, in spite of favorable fund balances in most major 
funds, the merit increases for employees continue to remain in frozen status.    
 
The City of Tehachapi is small but our staff has pride in keeping the city financially secure. 
 
 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and Investments 10,700,406$       1,020,916$         11,721,322$       
Receivables (Net of Allowance) 1,194,499           599,590              1,794,089           
Loans Receivable 195,344              -                          195,344              
Due from Agency Funds 137,880              -                          137,880              
Internal Balances 1,962,528           (1,962,528)          -                          
Restricted Cash and Investments -                          3,919,702           3,919,702           
Prepaids 138,456              412                     138,868              
Deferred Charges 569,093              735,739              1,304,832           
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 2,865,833           3,893,063           6,758,896           
Capital Assets, Depreciated, Net 22,335,311         12,006,317         34,341,628         
Other -                          235,000              235,000              

Total Assets 40,099,350         20,448,211         60,547,561         

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 653,075              323,017              976,092              
Accrued Liabilities 4,598                  25                       4,623                  
Accrued Interest Payable 89,351                41,023                130,374              
Deposits Payable 50,835                90,177                141,012              

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within One Year 538,570              394,453              933,023              
Due in More Than One Year 17,007,783         4,058,051           21,065,834         

Total Liabilities 18,344,212         4,906,746           23,250,958         

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 8,469,619           12,259,049         20,728,668         
Restricted for:

Maintenance of Water Lines -                          106,149              106,149              
Construction and Expansion of Facilities -                          3,704,701           3,704,701           
Highways and Streets 1,108,759           -                          1,108,759           
Public Safety 539,037              -                          539,037              
Debt Service -                          87,177                87,177                
RDA 5,177,709           -                          5,177,709           

Unrestricted 6,460,014           (615,611)             5,844,403           

Total Net Assets 21,755,138$      15,541,465$      37,296,603$      

City of Tehachapi
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Charges Operating Capital  
for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental Activities:

General Government 2,679,826$      273,355$         56$                   -$                    
Public Works 1,850,761        278,874          -                      1,053,153        
Public Safety 2,524,093        268,850          510,733           -                      
Community Development 382,293           -                     81,604             689,617           
Pass-throughs 396,866           -                     -                      -                      
Interest 894,340           -                     -                      -                      

Total Governmental Activities 8,728,179        821,079          592,393           1,742,770        

Business-type Activities:
Refuse 971,974           976,370          -                      -                      
Water 1,828,318        2,067,381       -                      -                      
Sewer 1,465,372        2,174,712       -                      -                      
Transit 146,448           4,867              158,105           -                      
Airport 701,815           469,048          -                      -                      

Total Business-type Activities 5,113,927        5,692,378       158,105           -                      

Total Primary Government 13,842,106$    6,513,457$      750,498$          1,742,770$      

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Property Tax in Lieu
Transient Occupancy Tax
Franchise Tax
Other Taxes
Miscellaneous Revenues
Investment Earnings
Transfers In (Out)

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Assets - End of Year

Program Revenues

City of Tehachapi
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

(2,406,415)$    -$                    (2,406,415)$      
(518,734)         -                      (518,734)          

(1,744,510)      -                      (1,744,510)        
388,928           -                      388,928           

(396,866)         -                      (396,866)          
(894,340)         -                      (894,340)          

(5,571,937)      -                      (5,571,937)        

-                      4,396               4,396               
-                      239,063           239,063           
-                      709,340           709,340           
-                      16,524             16,524             
-                      (232,767)         (232,767)          

-                      736,556           736,556           

(5,571,937)      736,556           (4,835,381)        

3,199,699        -                      3,199,699         
1,421,347        -                      1,421,347         
1,443,215        -                      1,443,215         

499,780           -                      499,780           
186,562           -                      186,562           
225,025           -                      225,025           

30,582             105,946           136,528           
109,028           32,521             141,549           

(1,319,958)      1,319,958        -                       

5,795,280        1,458,425        7,253,705         

223,343           2,194,981        2,418,324         

21,285,081      13,346,484      34,631,565       

246,714           -                      246,714           

21,755,138$    15,541,465$    37,296,603$     

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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RDA
General Low and Moderate RDA

Fund Housing Fund
ASSETS

Cash and Investments 2,801,650$        4,095,765$         994,607$           
Receivables 608,410            25,219                75,655               
Loans Receivable 195,344            -                         -                         
Due from Agency Funds 39,647              -                         -                         
Due from Other Funds 1,006,342         -                         -                         
Prepaids 135,956            -                         2,500                 
Advances to Other Funds 1,336,239         -                         -                         

Total Assets 6,123,588$        4,120,984$         1,072,762$        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:  

Accounts Payable 253,473$           -$                        16,037$             
Accrued Liabilities                                                             4,598                -                         -                         
Due to Other Funds -                        -                         -                         
Deferred Revenue -                        -                         -                         
Deposits Payable 50,835              -                         -                         

Total Liabilities 308,906            -                         16,037               

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 1,667,539         -                         2,500                 
Restricted -                        4,120,984          1,054,225          
Committed 697,676            -                         -                         
Assigned -                        -                         -                         
Unassigned 3,449,467         -                         -                         

Total Fund Balances 5,814,682         4,120,984          1,056,725          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 6,123,588$        4,120,984$         1,072,762$        

City of Tehachapi
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Other Total
Railroad Governmental Governmental
Depot Funds Funds

-$                        2,808,384$         10,700,406$      
-                          485,215              1,194,499         
-                          -                          195,344            
-                          -                          39,647              
-                          -                          1,006,342         
-                          -                          138,456            
-                          -                          1,336,239         

-$                        3,293,599$         14,610,933$      

-$                        383,565$            653,075$           
4,598                

-                          281,820              281,820            
-                          168,157              168,157            
-                          -                          50,835              

-                          833,542              1,158,485         

-                          -                          1,670,039         
-                          2,288,718           7,463,927         
-                          -                          697,676            
-                          294,987              294,987            
-                          (123,648)             3,325,819         

-                          2,460,057           13,452,448       

-$                        3,293,599$         14,610,933$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 13,452,448$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore,
 are not reported in the funds:

Capital Assets 31,989,117
Accumulated Depreciation (6,787,973)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Bonds Payable (16,835,000)
Issuance Discount 275,891
Capital Leases Payable (741,509)
Compensated Absences (245,735)

Accrued interest payable is not reported in the governmental funds. (89,351)

Long-term assets that are not available for current use. Amounts are recorded
as deferred revenue under the modified accrual basis of accounting. 168,157

Deferred charge for issuance costs on bonds. 569,093

Net Assets of Governmental Activities 21,755,138$      

City of Tehachapi
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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RDA
General Low and Moderate RDA

Fund Housing Fund
REVENUES

Taxes 4,625,942$         396,866$             1,587,464$         
Licenses, Permits, and Fines 76,582                -                          -                          
Intergovernmental 188,424              -                          -                          
Charges for Services 289,414              -                          -                          
Investment Earnings 49,537                27,952                 15,465                
Miscellaneous Revenues 32,995                -                          -                          

Total Revenues 5,262,894           424,818               1,602,929           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 822,662              91,250                 582,319              
Public Works 989,697              -                          29,093                
Public Safety 2,524,093           -                          -                          
Community Development 267,555              -                          -                          
Pass-throughs -                          -                          396,866              

Capital Outlay -                          2,895                   -                          
Debt Service:

Interest Expense -                          168,005               672,019              
Principal -                          67,000                 268,000              

Total Expenditures 4,604,007           329,150               1,948,297           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 658,887              95,668                 (345,368)             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In -                        -                         -                        
Transfers Out (8,270)               -                         (2,652,620)        

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (8,270)               -                         (2,652,620)        

Net Change in Fund Balances 650,617            95,668                (2,997,988)        

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 5,070,965           4,025,316            4,054,713           

Prior Period Adjustment 93,100                -                          -                          

Fund Balances, End of Year 5,814,682$        4,120,984$          1,056,725$        

City of Tehachapi
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Other Total
Railroad Governmental Governmental

Depot Funds Funds

-$                       636,897$           7,247,169$        
-                         346,535             423,117             
-                         1,811,735          2,000,159          
-                         -                         289,414             
-                         16,075               109,029             
-                         1,440                 34,435               

-                         2,812,682          10,103,323        

-                         5,837                 1,502,068          
-                         893,959             1,912,749          
-                         -                         2,524,093          
-                         114,738             382,293             
-                         -                         396,866             
-                         2,288,111          2,291,006          

-                         24,195               864,219             
-                         24,493               359,493             

-                         3,351,333          10,232,787        

-                         (538,651)            (129,464)            

688,657             947,954             1,636,611        
-                         (295,679)            (2,956,569)       

688,657             652,275             (1,319,958)       

688,657             113,624             (1,449,422)       

(688,657)            2,192,819          14,655,156        

-                         153,614             246,714             

-$                       2,460,057$        13,452,448$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (1,449,422)$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as an expenditures.  However in the
Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. 

Capital Outlay 2,409,352
Disposal of Capital Assets (56,358)
Depreciation Expense (1,154,280)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premium discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

Principal Repayments
Tax Allocation Bonds 335,000
Capital Leases 24,493

Amortization of Issuance Costs (22,962)
Amortization of Bond Discounts (10,968)

Accrued interest payable is not reported in the governmental funds. 3,809

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities are not considered to be available
to finance current expenditures and therefore are not reported as revenues in the 
governmental funds. 168,157

To record the net change in compensated absences in the statement of activities. (23,478)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 223,343$           

City of Tehachapi
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Water Sewer Airport
Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Investments 345,976$            506,520$            30,300$              
Receivables (Net of Allowance) 251,776              210,252              4,832                  
Restricted Cash and Investments 317,334              3,602,368           -                         
Prepaids -                         412                     -                         

Total Current Assets 915,086              4,319,552           35,132                

Noncurrent Assets:
Deferred Charges 171,609              564,130              -                         
Other Assets -                         -                         -                         

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 1,673,882           2,161,638           57,543                
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 5,245,224           4,606,555           2,154,538           

Total Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) 6,919,106           6,768,193           2,212,081           

Total Noncurrent Assets 7,090,715           7,332,323           2,212,081           

Total Assets 8,005,801           11,651,875         2,247,213           

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 43,965                33,862                46,216                
Accrued Liabilities -                         -                         25                       
Accrued Interest Payable 7,164                  32,076                1,783                  
Due to Other Funds -                         -                         724,522              
Customer Deposits Payable 90,177                -                         -                         
Compensated Absences - Current 24,604                20,921                4,018                  
Capital Leases Payable - Current 1,538                  20,653                -                         
Notes and Bonds Payable - Current 19,200                289,957              9,440                  

Total Current Liabilities 186,648              397,469              786,004              

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances Payable 755,184              482,822              -                         
Compensated Absences 10,439                8,877                  1,705                  
Capital Leases Payable 43,131                270,703              -                         
Notes and Bonds Payable 566,907              3,093,391           61,150                

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,375,661           3,855,793           62,855                

Total Liabilities 1,562,309           4,253,262           848,859              

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 6,459,939           3,657,619           2,141,491           
Restricted:

Maintenance of Water Lines 106,149              -                         -                         
Construction and Expansion of Facilities 120,916              3,583,785           -                         
Debt Service 87,177                -                         -                         

Unrestricted (330,689)             157,209              (743,137)             

Total Net Assets 6,443,492$        7,398,613$        1,398,354$        

City of Tehachapi
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Refuse Nonmajor Transit
Fund Fund Total

97,438$              40,682$               1,020,916$          
132,730              -                          599,590               

-                         -                          3,919,702            
-                         -                          412                     

230,168              40,682                 5,540,620            

-                         -                          735,739               
235,000              -                          235,000               

-                         -                          3,893,063            
-                         -                          12,006,317          

-                         -                          15,899,380          

235,000              -                          16,870,119          

465,168              40,682                 22,410,739          

177,703              21,271                 323,017               
-                         -                          25                       
-                         -                          41,023                 
-                         -                          724,522               
-                         -                          90,177                 

2,309                  1,813                  53,665                 
-                         -                          22,191                 
-                         -                          318,597               

180,012              23,084                 1,573,217            

-                         -                          1,238,006            
980                     768                     22,769                 

-                         -                          313,834               
-                         -                          3,721,448            

980                     768                     5,296,057            

180,992              23,852                 6,869,274            

-                         -                          12,259,049          

-                         -                          106,149               
-                         -                          3,704,701            
-                         -                          87,177                 

284,176              16,830                 (615,611)             

284,176$            16,830$               15,541,465$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Water Sewer Airport
Fund Fund Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 2,067,381$         2,174,712$         469,048$            
Miscellaneous 60,424                24,134                11,003                

Total Operating Revenues 2,127,805           2,198,846           480,051              

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services 731,269              521,968              181,873              
Maintenance and Operations 656,292              339,947              365,852              
Depreciation 261,150              353,629              150,299              

Total Operating Expenses 1,648,711           1,215,544           698,024              

Operating Income (Loss) 479,094              983,302              (217,973)             

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental -                          -                          -                          
Investment Earnings 7,321                  24,894                -                          
Interest Expense (118,063)             (249,828)             (3,791)                 
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (61,544)               -                          -                          

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (172,286)             (224,934)             (3,791)                 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 306,808              758,368              (221,764)             

Transfers In 685,000              626,688              8,270                  

Change in Net Assets 991,808              1,385,056           (213,494)             

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 5,451,684           6,013,556           1,611,849           

Net Assets - End of Year 6,443,492$        7,398,612$        1,398,355$        

City of Tehachapi
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Refuse Nonmajor Transit
Fund Fund Total

976,370$            4,867$                 5,692,378$          
10,385                -                          105,946               

986,755              4,867                   5,798,324            

55,501                27,583                 1,518,194            
916,473              118,865               2,397,429            

-                          -                          765,078               

971,974              146,448               4,680,701            

14,781                (141,581)             1,117,623            

-                          158,105               158,105               
-                          306                      32,521                 
-                          -                          (371,682)             
-                          -                          (61,544)               

-                          158,411               (242,600)             

14,781                16,830                 875,023               

-                          -                          1,319,958            

14,781                16,830                 2,194,981            

269,395              -                          13,346,484          

284,176$            16,830$               15,541,465$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Water 
Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers 2,147,742$         
Payments to Employees for Services (731,269)             
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (2,023,467)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (606,994)             

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Other Funds -                          
Intergovernmental Revenue -                          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital and Related Financing Activities -                          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (122,393)             
Interest Paid (96,255)               
Proceeeds from Interfund Advances 833,016              
Cash Received from Other Funds 685,000              
Payments on Interfund Advance (77,832)               
Payments on Capital Lease Obligations (1,476)                 
Payments on Long-term Debt (1,206,950)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 13,110                

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 7,321                  

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 7,321                  

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (586,563)             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of the Year 1,249,873           

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year 663,310$           

Statement of Cash Flows 
City of Tehachapi

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Proprietary Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Sewer Airport Refuse Nonmajor Transit
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

2,220,650$         470,992$            996,713$            39,858$              5,875,955$         
(521,968)             (181,873)             (55,501)               (27,583)               (1,518,194)          
(308,479)             (264,165)             (911,980)             (130,079)             (3,638,170)          

1,390,203           24,954                29,232                (117,804)             719,591              

-                          8,270                  -                          -                          8,270                  
-                          -                          -                          158,105              158,105              

-                          8,270                  -                          158,105              166,375              

(230,284)             (30,079)               -                          -                          (382,756)             
(206,141)             (4,018)                 -                          -                          (306,414)             
532,584              -                          -                          -                          1,365,600           
626,688              -                          -                          -                          1,311,688           
(49,762)               -                          -                          -                          (127,594)             
(19,813)               -                          -                          -                          (21,289)               

(1,041,783)          (8,955)                 -                          -                          (2,257,688)          

(388,511)             (43,052)               -                          -                          (418,453)             

24,894                -                          -                          306                     32,521                

24,894                -                          -                          306                     32,521                

1,026,586           (9,828)                 29,232                40,607                500,034              

3,082,302           40,128                68,206                75                       4,440,584           

4,108,888$         30,300$              97,438$             40,682$             4,940,618$         

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Water 
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Fund

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) 479,094$            
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 261,150              
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease (Increase) in Receivables 8,182                  
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses -                          
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (32,218)               
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities -                          
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 35,043                
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds (1,370,000)          
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits Payable 11,755                

TOTAL CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (606,994)$          

 NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amortization Related to Long-term Debt 3,323$                

City of Tehachapi
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Sewer Airport Refuse Nonmajor Transit
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

983,302$            (217,973)$           14,781$              (141,581)$           1,117,623$         

353,629              150,299              -                          -                          765,078              

16,432                (359)                    9,958                  34,991                69,204                
5,372                  -                          -                          -                          5,372                  
1,670                  16,782                1,204                  5,740                  (6,822)                 

-                          25                       -                          -                          25                       
29,798                5,723                  3,289                  2,581                  76,434                

-                          79,157                -                          (19,535)               (1,310,378)          
-                          (8,700)                 -                          -                          3,055                  

1,390,203$         24,954$              29,232$             (117,804)$          719,591$           

20,412$              -$                        -$                        -$                        23,735$              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Total
Agency
Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Investments 1,525,368$            
Cash with Fiscal Agent 4,550                     
Receivables 22,837                   
Advances to Other Funds 98,233                   
Other Assets 257,222                 

Total Assets 1,908,210$            

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 14,764$                 
Advances from Other Funds 196,466                 
Due to Other Funds 39,647                   
Due to Bond Holders 1,657,333              

Total Liabilities 1,908,210$            

City of Tehachapi
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

 A) Reporting Entity 
 

The City of Tehachapi was incorporated August 13, 1909 under the general laws of the State of California.  The City 
operates under a Council/City Manager form of government and provides the following services:  public safety (police 
and fire); community services; public works; general administrative services; and capital improvements. 
 
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements 
present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially 
accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government’s 
operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. 
 
The following is a brief overview of the component units included in the accompanying financial statements of the 
City. 
 

Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency - The Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency was established pursuant to the State of 
California Health and Safety Code, Section 33000.  The Agency is responsible for rehabilitation and economic 
revitalization of certain areas within the City. 
 

Tehachapi City Financing Corporation (TCFC) - The Tehachapi City Financing Corporation was formed on 
September 26, 1990, as a Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation to render financial assistance to the City by issuing debt 
instruments. 
 
Detailed financial statements are available for the Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency from the City’s Finance 
Department.  The TCFC does not issue separate financial statements. 
 

 B) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) report 
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.  For the most part, 
the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to 
a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 

  The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are 
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific program, project, 
function or segment.  Program revenues include:  1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
  Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though 

the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major individual governmental funds and 
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 B) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued 
 
  The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 

accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  The Agency funds 
also use the accrual basis of accounting.  The Agency funds are custodial in nature and therefore do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. 

 
  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are 

recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the providers have been met. 
 
  Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 

modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
  Taxes, intergovernmental revenues, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to 

be susceptible to accrual, and are therefore recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Only the portion of 
special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
of the current period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received 
by the City. 

 
  The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
 The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the City, 

except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
 The RDA Low and Moderate Housing Fund is used to account for the portion of Agency tax increment revenue legally 

restricted to expenditures for low and moderate income housing purposes. 
 
 The RDA Fund is used to account for the interest and principal payments on the Agency’s long-term debt issuance and 

to fund redevelopment projects. 
 
 The Railroad Depot Fund is used to account for the expenditures related to the construction of the new railroad depot 

structure. 
 
 The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

The Sewer Utility, Water Utility, Refuse and Airport Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise where the intent of the City Council is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be 
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 B) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued 
 
 Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 
 
 The Agency Funds are used to account for funds that are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve 

measurement of results of operations.  The City accounts for transactions of its special assessment districts and 
community facilities districts as agency funds.  

 
 Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed 

in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict 
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Governments also have the option of 
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation.  The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

 
 As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.  

Exceptions to this general rule are payments in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City’s water and sewer 
function and various other functions of the City.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

 
 Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 

provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.  
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general 
revenues include all taxes. 

 
 Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and 

expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers 
for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses. 

 
 When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources 

first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 C) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity 
 

  Deposits and Investments 
 
  For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City’s cash and investments are considered to be cash on hand, 

demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

 
  In accordance with the California Government Code, and as further restricted by the City’s adopted investment policy, 

the City may invest in the following types of investments: 
 

 U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds. 
 Local Agency Investment Fund administered by the California State Treasurer. 
 Obligations issued by agencies or instrumentality of the U.S. Government. 
 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by federally or state chartered banks or associations. 
 Money Market Mutual Funds investing in the securities and obligations authorized by CGC Section 53601. 
 Guaranteed Investment Contract. 

 
Investments held by bond trustees and/or fiscal agents are invested in accordance with separate trust agreements. 
 
For all investments at June 30, 2011, amortized cost approximates fair market value. 
 
The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for funds held in separate trust 
agreements. 
 
Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated quarterly to the various funds based on the average 
of the beginning and ending cash balances.  Interest income from cash and investments of funds excluded from pooled 
cash is credited directly to the related fund. 
 
Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of the interfund loans) or “advances 
to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of the interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds 
are reported as “due to/from other funds.”  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 
 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a nonspendable fund balance 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not 
expendable available financial resources. 
 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectibles. 
 
Taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable in two installments on December 10 and April 10.  The County bills and 
collects the property taxes and remits them to the City in installments during the year.  City property tax revenues are 
recognized when levied to the extent that they result in current receivables. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 C) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity - Continued 
 

Receivables and Payables - Continued 
 
The County is permitted by State Law (Proposition 13) to levy taxes at 1% of full market value (at time of purchase) 
and can increase the property tax rate no more than 2% per year.  The City receives a share of this basic levy. 
 

 Prepaid Items 
 

  Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in 
both government-wide and fund financial statements.  

 

 Restricted Assets 
 

Amounts shown as restricted assets have been restricted by either bond indenture, by law, or contractual obligations to 
be used for specified purposes, such as servicing bonded debt and construction of capital assets. 
 

 Capital Assets 
 

 Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and 
similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.  
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives 
are not capitalized.  
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest incurred during 
the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the 
assets constructed.  The total interest expense incurred by the proprietary funds during the current fiscal year was 
$371,682.  Of this amount, $0 was included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 
 

Buildings   30 years 
Machinery and Equipment   5 - 30 years 
Structures and Other Improvements  10 - 40 years 

 
Capital lease obligations of the Proprietary Funds are accounted for in the year of inception as a liability of the fund.  
The related asset is recorded as an asset of the fund. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

 

 C) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity - Continued 
 

  Compensated Absences 
 
  It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.  There is no 

liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees 
separate from service with the City.  All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, 
and fiduciary fund financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they 
have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

 

 Long-term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.  Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance 
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, 
are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 

 Net Assets and Fund Balances 
 
GASB Statement No. 34 adds the concept of Net Assets, which is measured on the full accrual basis, to the concept of 
Fund Balance, which is measured on the modified accrual basis. 

 
1) Net Assets 

 
Net assets are the excess of all the City’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund.  Net assets are divided into 
three captions under GASB Statement No. 34.  These captions apply only to net assets, which is determined only at 
the government-wide level and for proprietary funds and are described below: 
 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt describes the portion of net assets which is represented by the current 
net book value of the City’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to finance these assets. 
 
Restricted describes the portion of net assets which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of agreements 
with outside parties, governmental regulation, laws, or other restrictions which the City cannot unilaterally alter.  
These principally include developer fees received for use on capital projects, debt service requirements, and 
redevelopment funds restricted to low and moderate income purposes. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 C) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity - Continued 
 

 Net Assets and Fund Balances - Continued 
 

1) Net Assets - Continued 
 

Unrestricted describes the portion of net assets which is not restricted to use. 
 

 2) Fund Balances 

 
The City implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions as of June 30, 2011.  Fund balances in governmental funds are reported in classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the 
specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.  The City considers restricted fund balance to 
have been spent first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
fund balance is available.  Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of 
the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the City considers committed amounts to be 
reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts. 
 
The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes 
for which resources can be used: 
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or 
are required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance - Amounts that are constrained to specific purposes by state or federal laws, or 
externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 
 
Committed Fund Balance - Amounts constrained for a specific purpose by City Council action.  It would 
require the same action by City Council to remove the constraint.  The City’s committed fund balance includes: 

 
General Fund Emergency Contingency - The City’s General Fund balance committed for emergency 
contingencies has been set by resolution and is for specific uses listed as the declaration of a state or 
federal state of emergency or a local emergency. 

 
Assigned Fund Balance - Amounts that are constrained by the City Council’s intent to use specified financial 
resources for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City’s fund balance policy 
delegates the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes to the Finance Director for the 
purpose of reporting these amounts in the annual financial statements.  

 
Unassigned Fund Balance - These are either residual positive net resources of fund balance in excess of what 
can properly be classified in one of the other four categories, or negative balances. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 

 C) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity - Continued 
 

 2) Fund Balances - Continued 

 

Deficit Fund Equity 
 
  The following funds had material deficit fund balances at June 30, 2011: 
 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds:  
 Green Street Lighting Project  (117,566) 

 
  The City expects to abate these deficits by operating transfers from the general fund and future revenue. 
 
 

 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 

 A) Cash and Investments 
 
  The City’s cash and investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2011: 
 

Deposits $ 647,717
Investments  16,523,225
  
 Total Cash and Investments $ 17,170,942

 
 
  The City’s deposits and investments are reflected in the accompanying basic financial statements as follows: 
 

  Governmental  Business-Type  Fiduciary   
  Activities  Activities  Funds  Total 
         
Cash and Investments  $ 10,700,406  $ 1,020,916  $ 1,525,368  $ 13,246,690
Restricted Cash   -   3,919,702   4,550   3,924,252
         
  $ 10,700,406  $ 4,940,618  $ 1,529,918  $ 17,170,942

 
 Deposits 
 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may 
not be returned to it.  The City’s deposit policy requires deposits to be covered by the federal depository insurance 
and collateral having a market value of 110% of the uninsured deposit.  As of June 30, 2011, none of the City’s 
deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 

 A) Cash and Investments 
 
 Investments 
 
 As of June 30, 2011, the City had the following investments: 
 

   Maturities in Years 
Investment Type  Total  Less than 1  1 to 5 

       
Local Agency Investment Funds  $ 11,963,764  $ 11,963,764 $ - 
Government Securities   2,048,000   -   2,048,000 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit   1,199,239   619,597  579,642 
Money Market Mutual Funds   3,695   3,695  - 
Corporate Bonds   91,646   91,646  - 
Held by Bond Trustee:       

Money Market Mutual Funds   1,216,881   1,216,881  - 
       
 Total  $ 16,523,225  $ 13,895,583 $ 2,627,642 

 
 
 Authorized Investments 
 
 The investments listed above are managed by the City Treasurer and Fiscal Agents (bond trustees acting in 

accordance with bond covenants).  Investments managed by the City Treasurer are invested in accordance with the 
City’s investment policy.  Investments managed by bond trustees are invested in accordance with provisions of the 
respective bond agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s 
investment policy. 

 
 The City’s investments by the investments manager are as follows: 
 

City Treasurer  $ 15,306,344 
Fiscal Agents (Bond trustees for the City and its component units)   1,216,881 
   
  $ 16,523,225 

 
 
 The City Treasurer has direct oversight over the City’s pooled investment fund which covers cash and investments 

of the City’s governmental funds, proprietary funds, and agency funds which are invested in accordance with the 
City’s investment policy.  The investment policy generally complies with California Government Code Section 
53601 and its primary detail is as follows: 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 A) Cash and Investments - Continued 
 
 Authorized Investments - Continued 
 

    Maximum  Maximum   
Authorized  Maximum  Percentage  Investment  Minimum 

Investment Type  Maturity  of Portfolio  In One Issuer  Ratings 
         
U.S. Agencies  5 years  100%  100%  None 
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds  5 years  100%  100%  None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  N/A  None  None  None 
Guaranteed Investment Contract  N/A  None  None  AA 
Certificates of Deposit (CDs)  5 years  30%  100%  A 
Money Market Mutual Funds  N/A  15%  None  None 
Commercial Paper  5 years  15%  None   
Trust Indenture  N/A  None  None   

 
 
 Investments with fiscal agents are investments held by the bond trustee.  The City and its investment advisor selects 

the investment under the terms of the applicable trust agreement, directs the bond trustee to acquire the investment, 
and the bond trustee then holds the investment on behalf of the City and/or its component units.  Proceeds of bonds 
administered by bond trustees are also generally covered under the City Treasurer’s investment policy; however, 
specific provisions of each issuance are usually used in managing such investments. 

 
 Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
 Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates.  Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s and its component units’ investments 
to market rate fluctuations is provided in the table above that shows the distribution by maturity. 
 
The City’s investment policy generally complies with the State Government Code with respect to allowable 
investment instruments as a means of managing its fair value losses arising from changing interest rates.  
Guaranteed investment contracts are investments held by fiscal agents (bond trustees) and are restricted for 
construction projects and debt service. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s 
investment policy, or debt agreements, and the Standard and Poor’s rating as of year end for each investment type. 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 A) Cash and Investments - Continued 
 
Credit Risk - Continued 
 

Negotiable Certificates or Deposit   1,199,239  None  -  -  1,199,239  -
Money Market Mutual Funds  3,695  AAA  3,695  -  -  -
Corporate Bonds  91,646  A  91,646  -  -  -
Held by Bond Trustee:           
 Money Market Mutual Funds  1,216,881  AAA  1,216,881  -  -  -
 
 Total 

  
$ 16,523,225

  
 

 
$ 3,360,222

  
$ - 

  
$ 13,163,003

 
$ -

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the increased risk of loss if the City has a significant amount of investments with a 
single issuer.  In accordance with the Investment Policy of the City, none of the investments categories listed 
exceeded the maximum allowable percentage of its portfolio.  The investment policy of the City contains no 
limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California 
Government Code.  Investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of the total of the City’s investments 
are as follows: 
 

Issuer Type of Investment Amount 
   

Federal National Mortgage Association Government Security $ 1,000,000 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will 
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party.  Custodial credit risk for LAIF is not determinable. 

 
Investment in State Investment Pool 

 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair value of 
the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the 
City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized 
cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by 
LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

  Total  Minimum     Not 
  as of  Legal     Required 

Investment Type  June 30, 2011  Rating AAA Other  Unrated to be Rated 
LAIF  $ 11,963,764  None  $ -  $ -  $ 11,963,764  $ -
Government Securities  2,048,000  None  2,048,000  -  -  -
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 A) Cash and Investments - Continued 
 

 Included in cash and investments are restricted cash assets of $4,559,461 held by the various bond trustees and 
fiscal agents, and $87,177 of customer deposits in the Water Utility Fund. 

 

 B) Receivables 
 
 Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including the 

applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
 

   RDA         
 General  Low/Moderate  RDA  Railroad  Nonmajor   
 Fund  Housing Fund  Debt Service  Depot  Fund  Total 

            
Governmental Activities            
 Taxes $ 431,355  $ 25,219  $ 75,655  $ -  $ 42,963 $ 575,192
 Others  177,055   -   -   -   442,252  619,307

            
Net Total Receivables $ 608,410  $ 25,219  $ 75,655  $ -  $ 485,215 $ 1,194,499

 
 

 Water  Sewer  Refuse  Airport  Nonmajor   
 Fund  Fund  Fund  Fund  Fund  Total 

            
Business-Type Activities            
 Others $ 258,500  $ 216,459  $ 136,405  $ 4,832  $ - $ 616,196 

 Gross Receivables  258,500   216,459   136,405   4,832   -  616,196 
 Less:  Allowance for 
 Uncollectibles 

 
 (6,724)

  
 (6,207)

  
 (3,675)

  
 - 

  
 -

  
 (16,606)

            
Net Total Receivables $ 251,776  $ 210,252  $ 132,730  $ 4,832  $ - $ 599,590 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 
 C) Capital Assets 
 
 Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows: 
 

  Beginning      Ending 
  Balance  Increases  Decreases  Balance 
Governmental Activities:         
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated:         
 Land   $ 941,007  $ -  $ -  $ 941,007 
 Construction in Progress   2,648,572   589,528   (1,313,274)   1,924,826 
  Total Capital Assets, Not 
     Depreciated 

  
 3,589,579 

  
 589,528

  
 (1,313,274) 

  
 2,865,833 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:         
 Buildings and Improvements   4,042,159   -   -   4,042,159 
 Machinery and Equipment   2,982,857   131,579   (106,936)   3,007,500 
 Improvements other than Buildings   18,794,244   3,001,519   -   21,795,763 
 Parks   277,862   -   -   277,862 
  Total Capital Assets Being 
     Depreciated 

  
 26,097,122 

  
 3,133,098

  
 (106,936) 

  
 29,123,284 

 
Less Accumulated Depreciation:         
 Buildings and Improvements    (1,113,809)   (153,617)  -   (1,267,426)
 Machinery and Equipment   (2,295,711)   (262,343)  50,578   (2,507,476)
 Improvements other than Buildings   (2,260,838)   (731,373)  -   (2,992,211)
 Parks   (13,913)   (6,947)  -   (20,860)
         
  Total Accumulated Depreciation   (5,684,271)   (1,154,280)  50,578   (6,787,973)
   Total Capital Assets Being 
   Depreciated, Net 

  
 20,412,851 

  
 1,978,818

  
 (56,358) 

  
 22,335,311 

Governmental Activities Capital 
 Assets, Net of Depreciation 

  
$ 24,002,430 

  
$ 2,568,346

  
$ (1,369,632) 

  
$ 25,201,144 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 C) Capital Assets - Continued 
 

  Beginning      Ending 
  Balance  Increases  Decreases  Balance 
Business-Type Activities:         
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated:         
 Land   $ 684,609  $ -  $ -  $ 684,609 
 Water Rights*   1,585,795  110,527  (47,759)   1,648,563
 Construction in Progress   1,448,925

 
 137,639

 
 (26,673)   1,559,891

  Total Capital Assets, Not 
     Depreciated 

  
 3,719,329 

  
 248,166

  
 (74,432) 

  
 3,893,063 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:         
 Buildings   11,125,195   -   -   11,125,195 
 Machinery and Equipment   1,658,290   -   (12,382)   1,645,908 
 Improvements other then Building   10,600,986   147,477   -   10,748,463 
  Total Capital Assets Being 
     Depreciated 

  
 23,384,471 

  
 147,477

  
 (12,382) 

  
 23,519,566 

         
Less Accumulated Depreciation:         
 Building and Improvements    (6,933,607)   (324,390)  -   (7,257,997)
 Machinery and Equipment   (897,786)   (80,366)  12,382   (965,770)
 Improvements other then Building   (2,929,160)   (360,322)  -   (3,289,482)
         
  Total Accumulated Depreciation   (10,760,553)   (765,078)  12,382   (11,513,249)
   Total Capital Assets Being 
   Depreciated, Net 

  
 12,623,918 

  
 (617,601)

  
 - 

  
 12,006,317 

Business-Type Activities Capital 
 Assets, Net of Depreciation 

  
$ 16,343,247 

  
$ (369,435)

  
$ (74,432) 

  
$ 15,899,380 

 
 * This amount was included in Land in the Water Fund in prior years.  The balance is now properly classified as Water 

Rights. 
 

  Depreciation was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities:   
 General Government  $ 1,154,280 
   
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities  $ 1,154,280 

   
Business-Type Activities:   
 Water  $ 261,150 
 Sewer   353,629 
 Airport   150,299 
   
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities  $ 765,078 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 D) Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 
 
 The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011 is as follows: 
 

 Receivable Fund  Payable Fund 
    
General Fund $ 1,045,989  $ - 
    
Non-major Governmental Funds  -   281,820 
    
Enterprise Funds:    
 Airport Fund  -   724,522 
    
Agency Funds  -   39,647 
    
 Total $ 1,045,989  $ 1,045,989 

 
The General Fund has loaned monies to the Non-major Governmental Funds, the Airport Fund, and the Agency 
Funds to cover operating cash deficits.  These amounts are expected to be paid back in the following fiscal year. 

 
 Advances to/from consist of the following at June 30, 2011: 

 

 Receivable Fund  Payable Fund 
    
General Fund $ 1,336,239  $ - 
    
Proprietary Funds:    
 Water Fund  -   755,184 
 Sewer Fund  -   482,822 
    
Agency Funds  -   98,233 
    
 Total $ 1,336,239  $ 1,336,239 

 
The General Fund advanced the Water and Sewer Funds $755,184 and $482,822 respectively, in order for the Water 
and Sewer funds to payoff bonds early. 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 D) Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers - Continued 
 

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows: 
 

  TRANSFERS IN  

  Railroad Non-major      
  Depot Governmental Water Sewer  Airport  
  Fund Funds Fund Fund  Fund Total 

         
  General Fund $ - $ - $ - $ -  $ 8,270 $ 8,270

TRANSFERS   RDA Fund  688,657  652,275  685,000  626,688   -  2,652,620
OUT  Non-Major  

   Governmental Funds 
 
 -

 
 295,679

 
 -

 
 - 

  
 -

 
 295,679

         
  Total $ 688,657 $ 947,954 $ 685,000 $ 626,688  $ 8,270 $ 2,956,569

 
The RDA Fund transferred $2,652,620 to the Railroad Depot, Non-major Governmental, Water, and Sewer funds for 
various capital projects.  The transfers from the Non-major Governmental Funds to the Non-Major Governmental 
Funds were for capital projects. 

 

 E) Other Assets 
 
 Other assets at June 30, 2011 consist of the following: 

 

 Agency   
 Funds  Total 
    
Foreclosure Receivables $ 257,222  $ 257,222 

 

 Foreclosure Receivables 

 

The City has provided infrastructure improvements to various property owners in exchange for special taxes on 
those properties.  Non-payment of these taxes has occurred on selected properties and the City has taken steps 
toward foreclosure.  Funds have been expended during the foreclosure process that are expected to be received at 
completion of the foreclosure action.  Due to the uncertainty as to the date upon which the City will receive 
reimbursement for the funds expended, those receivables have been reclassified as Other Assets within the 
Fiduciary Funds. 

 

Joint Venture in Recycling Project 

 

During the year ended June 30, 1991, the City invested $235,000 in a joint venture recycling plant with Benz 
Sanitation, a local sanitation company.  The investment does not result in title to the plant.  The City does, however, 
have a profit sharing interest of 5% of the gross profits and is held free from responsibility for any debts and 
obligations of the recycling project.  The City did not receive a profit sharing payment for the year ending June 30, 
2011. 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 F) Long-Term Debt 
 

 Changes in General Long-Term Liabilities 
 
  Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows: 
 

  Beginning      Ending  Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance  One Year 
Governmental Activities:           
Tax Allocation Bonds  $ 17,170,000  $ -  $ 335,000  $ 16,835,000  $ 350,000
Less Deferred Amounts:           
 For Issuance Discounts   (286,859)   -   (10,968)   (275,891)  -
           
 Total Bonds Payable   16,883,141   -   324,032   16,559,109   350,000
           
Capital Leases   766,002   -   24,493   741,509   25,279
Compensated Absences   222,257   196,012   172,534   245,735   163,291
 Governmental Activity           
 Long-term Liabilities  $ 17,871,400  $ 196,012  $ 521,059  $ 17,546,353  $ 538,570

           
Business-type Activities:           
2004 Revenue Refunding Bonds  $ 3,170,000  $ -  $ 125,000  $ 3,045,000  $ 125,000
1993 State Revolving Loan   728,509   -   174,134   554,375   179,357
1998 Sewer and Water COP   247,900   -   4,600   243,300   4,800
2000 Sewer and Water COP   1,945,000   -   1,945,000   -   -
Less Deferred Amounts:           
 For Issuance Discounts   (125,414)   -   (14,846)   (110,568)  -
 On Refunding   261,084   -   23,735   237,349   -
           
  Total Bonds Payable   6,227,079   -   2,257,623   3,969,456   309,157
           
Department of Transportation 
 Loan 

  
 79,545 

  
 -

  
 8,956

  
 70,589

  
 9,440

Capital Leases   357,314   -   21,289   336,025   22,191
Compensated Absences   -   132,464   56,030   76,434   53,665
 Business-type Activity           
 Long-term Liabilities  $ 6,663,938  $ 132,464  $ 2,343,898  $ 4,452,504  $ 394,453

 

 Tax Allocation Bonds 

 

 In December 2005, the Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency issued Tax Allocation Bonds in the amount of 
$8,780,000.  These bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the Agency’s $1,555,000 2004 Subordinate Tax 
Allocation Notes and the Agency’s $2,500,000 2002 Tax Allocation Notes.  A portion of the net proceeds of the 
Bonds will also be used to fund certain redevelopment activities of benefit to the Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency 
(“the Project Area”), including amounts which will be deposited into a special escrow fund for future release.  The 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 F) Long-Term Debt - Continued 
 

 Tax Allocation Bonds - Continued 

 

 Bonds will mature on December 1, 2035 and the interest rate ranges between 3.25% and 5.25% over the life of the 
Bonds.  Interest is payable semiannually on June 1st and December 1st of each year, commencing June 1, 2006.  The 
Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Agency on or after June 1, 2006. 

 

 The annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2005 Tax Allocation Bonds are as follows: 

 

 

2005 Bonds 
Year Ending     

June 30,  Principal  Interest 
     

2012  $ 185,000  $ 385,626 
2013   190,000   378,109 
2014   195,000   370,256 
2015   205,000   362,064 
2016   210,000   353,525 

2017-2021   1,210,000   1,616,515 
2022-2026   1,520,000   1,303,741 
2027-2031   1,910,000   884,449 
2032-2036   2,460,000   327,457 

     
Total  $ 8,085,000  $ 5,981,742 

 

 

 In December 2007, the Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency issued Tax Allocation Bonds in the amount of 
$9,120,000.  These Bonds were issued for the purpose of financing additional redevelopment activities for the 
Tehachapi Redevelopment Agency (the “Project Area”), including amounts which will be deposited into a special 
escrow fund for future release.  Proceeds of the 2007 Bonds will also be used to fund capitalized interest for the 
2007 Bonds which fund the special escrow fund, to provide money to meet the parity reserve fund requirement for 
the 2007 Bonds and the 2005 Bonds.  The Bonds are secured by a pledge of tax revenues.  The Bonds will mature 
on December 1, 2037 and the interest rate ranges between 3.4% and 5.313% over the life of the Bonds.  Interest is 
payable semiannually, on June 1st and December 1st of each year, commencing June 1, 2009.  The Bonds are subject 
to redemption at the option of the Agency on or after December 1, 2018. 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 F) Long-Term Debt - Continued 
 

 Tax Allocation Bonds - Continued 

 

 The annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2007 Tax Allocation Bonds are as follows: 

 

 

2007 Bonds 
Year Ending     

June 30,  Principal  Interest 
     

2012  $ 165,000  $ 440,226 
2013   175,000   432,650 
2014   175,000   424,785 
2015   185,000   416,686 
2016   195,000   407,933 

2017-2021   1,125,000   1,886,612 
2022-2026   1,425,000   1,572,900 
2027-2031   1,825,000   1,161,636 
2032-2036   2,355,000   622,800 
2037-2038   1,125,000   60,441 

     
Total  $ 8,750,000  $ 7,426,669 

 
 

  Capital Leases 
 
 The City, at various occasions, enters into lease agreements that qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes 

and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception 
date. 

 

 The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

 

 Governmental  Business-Type 
 Activities  Activities 
Asset:    
 Goodrick Drive $ 955,570  $ 195,719
 Less Accumulated Depreciation  (366,559)   (75,078)
    
 Total $ 589,011  $ 120,641
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 F) Long-Term Debt - Continued 
 

  Capital Leases - Continued 
 

 The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 
2011, were as follows: 

 

 

Year Ending   Governmental  Business-Type 
June 30,   Activities  Activities 

      
2012   $ 48,676  $ 35,361
2013    48,663   35,358
2014    48,649   35,356
2015    48,635   35,353
2016    48,622   35,349

2017-2021    242,874   151,311
2022-2026    242,441   49,656
2027-2031    241,933   49,552

2032    48,318   9,897
      

Total    1,018,811   437,193
Less amount representing interest  (277,301)   (101,168)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 741,510  $ 336,025

 

 

 2004 Revenue Refunding Bonds 

 

On November 1, 2004, the City issued Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount of $3,770,000.  
These 2004 bonds were issued for the purpose of prepaying and defeasing the outstanding 1994 Water and Sewer 
Revenue Refunding Bond with an aggregated principal amount of $2,970,000 and to pay the cost of issuance of the 
Bonds.  The acquisition price exceeded the net carrying value of the old debt by $261,937 which is being amortized 
over the life of the new debt, which is equal to the remaining life of the refunded debt.  The bonds were issued with an 
interest rate ranging from 2% to 4.125% over the life of the bonds, with a debt service requirement of $5,436,606 to be 
paid over the next 15 years. 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 F) Long-Term Debt - Continued 
 

 2004 Revenue Refunding Bonds - Continued 

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 2004 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds are as 
follows: 
 

Year Ending     
June 30,  Principal  Interest 

     
2012  $ 125,000  $ 117,644 
2013   125,000   113,737 
2014   135,000   109,344 
2015   140,000   104,444 
2016   145,000   99,187 
2017   150,000   93,469 
2018   495,000   80,569 
2019   555,000   59,569 
2020   570,000   36,712 
2021   605,000   12,478 

     
Total  $ 3,045,000  $ 827,153 

 
 

 1993 State Revolving Loan 
 

During fiscal year 1994-1995, the City obtained financing from the State of California for the construction of sewer 
facilities.  The State established a line of credit upon which the City received $2,882,112 in eleven disbursements from 
January 1993 to January 1994.  The interest rate is 3.0% and repayment is scheduled in annual installments over 20 
years commencing November 1, 1994. 
 
The annual debt service requirements are as follows: 
 

Year Ending     
June 30,  Principal  Interest 

     
     

2012  $ 179,357  $ 16,631 
2013   184,738   11,251 
2014   190,280   5,708 

     
Total  $ 554,375  $ 33,590 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 

 F) Long-Term Debt - Continued 
 

 1998 Sewer & Water COPs 
 

In July 1998, the City obtained loans from the USDA Rural Development totaling $289,900.  The Sewer Fund received 
$103,000 and Water Fund received $186,900.  The loans were made by purchase of Certificates of Participation (COP), 
which were issued by the Tehachapi City Financing Corp. (Financing Corp.) with an interest rate of 4.5%.  The 
proceeds from the sale of the COPs were used to finance the building of a new sewer line to connect to the recently 
annexed Ashe tract.  The COPs are secured by installments payments due from the City based on an Installment Sale 
Agreement between the Financing Corporation and the City. 
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 1998 Sewer and Water COPs are as follows: 
 

Year Ending     
June 30,  Principal  Interest 

     
2012  $ 4,800  $ 10,948 
2013   5,000   10,732 
2014   5,300   10,508 
2015   5,400   10,269 
2016   5,700   10,026 

2017-2021   32,600   46,039 
2022-2026   40,900   38,016 
2027-2031   50,700   27,940 
2032-2036   63,400   15,444 
2037-2038   29,500   2,007 

     
Total  $ 243,300  $ 181,929 

 

Department of Transportation Loan 
 
In October 1998, the City obtained financing from the Department of Transportation Aeronautics Program for the 
purchase of a fuel tank for the airport.  The cost of the fuel tank was $139,900.  The interest rate is 5.0% and repayment 
is scheduled in annual installments over 17 years commencing January 1, 2002. 
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

Year Ending     
June 30,  Principal  Interest 

     
2012  $ 9,440  $ 3,565 
2013   9,924   3,088 
2014   10,408   2,587 
2015   10,891   2,061 
2016   11,376   1,511 
2017   11,860   937 
2018   6,690   338 

     
Total  $ 70,589   14,087 
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 2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued 
 
 F) Long-Term Debt - Continued 
 

No-Commitment Debt 
 
The City issued limited obligation bonds to finance the construction of infrastructure improvements within the City 
through the use of Special Assessment Districts and Community Facilities Districts.  The repayment of the bonds are 
payable from special assessments and special taxes levied each year, or from foreclosure proceeds.  The bonds do not 
constitute indebtedness of the City, and the City is in no way obligated for their repayment and is only acting on behalf 
of bondholders and initiating foreclosure proceedings, if necessary.  Accordingly, these special assessments and special 
tax bonds payable have been excluded from the accompanying primary government financial statements. 
 
Limited obligation assessment district and community facilities district bonds outstanding amounted to $2,630,000 at 
June 30, 2011. 
 
Due to delinquent annual assessments, limited obligation bonds amounting to $2,425,000 (principal only) are in default 
at June 30, 2011. 

 
G) Fund Balances  

 
 The details of the fund balances as of June 30, 2011 are presented below: 

 
  RDA Low    Other  Total 
 General and Moderate RDA Railroad  Governmental  Governmental 
 Fund  Housing Fund Depot  Funds  Funds 
 Nonspendable:           
  Prepaids $ 135,956  $ -  $ 2,500 $ -  $ -  $ 138,456 
 Loans Receivable 195,344  -  - - - 195,344 
 Advances to Other 
  Funds 

 
1,336,239 

 
-

  
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1,336,239 

           
 Restricted for:        
 Low/Mod Housing -  4,004,228  - - - 4,004,228 
 Debt Service  -  116,756  959,386 - - 1,076,142 
 Redevelopment 
  Projects  

 
- 

 
-

  
94,839 

 
- 

 
- 

 
94,839 

 Capital Projects -  -  - - 1,027,150 1,027,150 
 Transportation  -  -  - - 1,062,592 1,062,592 
 Development  -  -  - - 198,976 198,976 
        
 Committed to:        
 Emergency  
  Contingency 

 
697,676 

 
-

  
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
697,676 

        
 Assigned to:        
 Capital Projects -  -  - - 174,002 174,002 
 Equipment  
  Replacement  

 
- 

 
-

  
- 

 
- 

 
120,985 

 
120,985 

        
 Unassigned: 3,449,467  -  - - (123,648) 3,325,819 

        
Total Fund Balance $ 5,814,682  $ 4,120,984  $ 1,056,725 $ -  $ 2,460,057  $ 13,452,448 
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 3) OTHER INFORMATION 
 

 A) Risk Management 
 

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which establishes the 
Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA).  
 
The City is covered for the first $1,000,000 of each general liability claim and $500,000 of each workers’ compensation 
claim through the CSJVRMA.  The city has the right to receive dividends or the obligation to pay assessments based on 
a formula which, among other expenses, charges the City’s account for liability and workers’ compensation losses 
under $10,000.  The City’s share of estimated claims payable at June 30, 2011 and 2010 amounted to $0.  The 
CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool which provides general liability coverage from $1,000,000 to $25,000,000.  
The CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool which provides workers’ compensation coverage from $500,000 to 
$4,500,000 and purchases excess reinsurance above the $5,000,000 to the statutory limit. 
 
The CSJVRMA is a consortium of fifty-five (55) cities in San Joaquin Valley, California.  It was established under the 
provisions of California Government Code Section 6500 et seq.  The CSJVRMA is governed by a Board of Directors, 
which meets 3-4 times per year, consisting of one member appointed by each member city.  The day-to-day business is 
handled by a management group employed by the CSJVRMA.  At termination of the joint powers agreement and after 
all claims have been settled, any excess or deficit will be divided among the cities in accordance with its governing 
documents. 
 

B) City Employee Retirement Plans 
 

 Miscellaneous Plan and Safety Plan: 
 

 Plan Description 
 
The City of Tehachapi contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  The contract 
offers a “2% at 55” plan for Miscellaneous Plan members and “3% at 50” plan for Safety Police Plan Members. 
CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of 
California.  Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and city ordinance.  Copies 
of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their executive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, 
California 95814.   
 

Funding Policy 
 
Active plan members are required to contribute a percentage of their annual covered salary.  The City of Tehachapi 
pays the member contributions for both the Miscellaneous Plan and the Safety Plan: 7% and 9% respectively.  The 
City is also required to make additional contributions at an actuarially determined rate.  The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.  The required employer contribution 
rates for fiscal year 2010-2011 were 9.309% for the Miscellaneous Plan and 19.094% for the Safety Police Plan.  The 
contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution rate is 
established and may be amended by CalPERS. 
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 3) OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

B) City Employee Retirement Plans - Continued 
 

 Miscellaneous Plan and Safety Plan: - Continued 
 

Funding Policy - Continued 
 

Three Year Trend Information for the City of Tehachapi Miscellaneous Employees’ Retirement Plan 
   
 Fiscal  Required  Percent 
 Year   Contributions   Contributed  
   
 6/30/09 $ 188,420  100% 
 6/30/10 $ 172,012  100% 
 6/30/11 $ 233,113  100% 

 
 
 

Three Year Trend Information for the City of Tehachapi Safety Police Employees’ Retirement Plan 
   
 Fiscal  Required  Percent 
 Year   Contributions  Contributed  
   
 6/30/09 $ 127,716  100% 
 6/30/10 $ 206,660  100% 
 6/30/11 $ 171,299  100% 

 
 

Safety Fire Plan 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Safety Fire Plan of the City became inactive.  As such the City paid the 
side fund in the amount of $35,087 for the fiscal year June 30, 2008 and there will be no additional required 
contributions.  The plan is now part of an inactive pool subject to future gains and losses.  At any point in the future, the 
City may be required to make a contribution on the pools gain and losses.  Currently the pool has a surplus and no 
additional contribution is required.  
 

C) Prior Period Adjustment 
 
A prior period adjustment of $93,100 was made to the General Fund for sales tax not accrued properly in the prior 
year. Also, an adjustment was made to the Streets and Roads Fund for $153,614 to record revenue that had been 
deferred in the prior year.  These amounts are also reflected as prior period adjustments in the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental activities. 
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 3) OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

 D) Commitments and Contingencies 
 

 Construction Commitments 
 
 The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2011.  At year-end the City’s commitments with contractors are 

as follows: 
 

   Remaining 
Project Spent-to-Date  Commitment 
    
Downtown Beautification Phase II $ 271,401  $ 686,498
    
 Total $ 271,401  $ 686,498

 

The City has entered into a new debt agreement (Sewer Loan) as of May 2011. As of June 30, 2011, there was no 
activity by the City for this debt.  
 

Recent Changes in Legislation Affecting California Redevelopment Agencies 
 

On June 29, 2011, the Governor of the State of California signed Assembly Bills X1 26 and 27 as part of the State’s 
budget package.  Assembly Bill X1 26 requires each California redevelopment agency to suspend (effective July 1, 
2011) nearly all activities except to implement existing contracts, meet already-incurred obligations, preserve its 
assets and prepare for the impending dissolution of the agency.  Assembly Bill X1 27 provides a means for 
redevelopment agencies to continue to exist and operate by means of a Voluntary Alternative Redevelopment 
Program.  Under this program, each local government would adopt an ordinance agreeing to make certain payments 
to the County Auditor Controller in fiscal year 2011-12 and annual payments each fiscal year thereafter. Assembly 
Bill X1 26 indicates that the city, special district or county “may use any available funds not otherwise obligated for 
other uses” to make this payment.  The City of Tehachapi intends to use available monies of its redevelopment 
agency for this purpose and the City and Agency have approved a reimbursement agreement to accomplish that.  
The amounts to be paid after fiscal year 2012-13 have yet to be determined by the state legislature. 
 
Assembly Bill X1 26 directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of any transfers of 
assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011.  If the public 
body that received such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance 
of those assets, the State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to the public body 
designated as the successor agency by Assembly Bill X1 26.  
 
In the event that Assembly Bill X1 26 is upheld, the receivable recognized by funds of the City that had previously 
loaned or advanced funds to the redevelopment agency would become uncollectible with a loss recognized to the 
City. Additionally, the City would be impacted by the elimination of reimbursements previously paid to the City by 
the redevelopment agency for shared administrative services.  
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 3) OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

 D) Commitments and Contingencies - Continued 
 
The League of California Cities and the California Redevelopment Association (CRA) filed a lawsuit on July 18, 
2011 on behalf of cities, counties and redevelopment agencies petitioning the California Supreme Court to overturn 
Assembly Bills X1 26 and 27 on the grounds that they violate the California Constitution.  On August 11, 2011, the 
California Supreme Court issued a stay of all of Assembly Bill X1 27 and most of Assembly Bill X1 26.  The 
California Supreme Court stated in its order that “the briefing schedule is designed to facilitate oral argument as 
early as possible in 2011, and a decision before January 15, 2012.”  A second order issued by the California 
Supreme Court on August 17, 2011 indicated that certain provisions of Assembly Bills X1 26 and 27 were still in 
effect and not affected by its previous stay, including requirements to file an appeal of the determination of the 
community remittance payment by August 15, the requirement to adopt an Enforceable Obligations Payment 
Schedule (“EOPS”) by August 29, 2011, and the requirement to prepare a preliminary draft of the initial 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) by September 30, 2011. 
 
Because the stay provided by Assembly Bill X1 26 only affects enforcement, each agency must adopt an 
Enforceable Obligation Payment Schedule and draft Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule prior to September 
30, as required by the statute.  Enforceable obligations include bonds, loans, and payments required by the federal 
or State government; legally enforceable payments required in connection with agency employees such as pension 
payments and unemployment payments, judgments or settlements; legally binding and enforceable agreements or 
contracts; and contracts or agreements necessary for the continued administration or operation of the agency that are 
permitted for purposes set for in AB X1 26.  
 
On September 6, 2011, City of Tehachapi Ordinance No. 11-02-708 was adopted indicating that the City will 
comply with the Voluntary Alternative Redevelopment Program in order to permit the continued existence and 
operation of the agency, in the event Assembly Bills X1 26 and/or 27 are upheld as constitutional.  The initial 
payment by the City is estimated to be $316,877 with one half due on January 15, 2012 and the other half due May 
15, 2012. Thereafter, an estimated $100,000 will be due annually.  The amounts to be paid after fiscal year 2012-13 
have yet to be determined by the State Legislature.  The semi-annual payments will be due on January 15 and May 
15 of each year and would increase or decrease with changes in tax increment.  Additionally, an increased amount 
would be due to schools if any "new debt" is incurred.  Assembly Bill X1 27 allows a one-year reprieve on the 
agency’s obligation to contribute 20% of tax increment to the low-and-moderate-income housing fund so as to 
permit the Agency to assemble sufficient funds to make its initial payments.  Failure to make these payments would 
require agencies to be terminated under the provisions of ABX1 26. 

 
As of December 29, 2011, the Supreme Court of California upheld the provisions of Assembly Bill X1 26 and 
invalidated Assembly Bill X1 27.  The ruling provides for the wind up and dissolution of redevelopment agencies as 
of February 1, 2012. 
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 4,072,385$   4,171,889$   4,625,942$   454,053$       
Licenses, Permits, and Fines 80,000          68,876 76,582 7,706
Intergovernmental 85,000          160,000 188,424 28,424
Charges for Services 270,000        253,764 289,414 35,650
Investment Earnings 70,000          70,000 49,537 (20,463)
Miscellaneous Revenues 30,160          22,245 32,995 10,750

Total Revenues 4,607,545 4,746,774 5,262,894 516,120

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 918,965 886,209 822,662 63,547
Public Works 539,399 602,959 989,697 (386,738)
Public Safety 2,383,917 2,506,650 2,524,093 (17,443)
Community Development 762,895 724,188 267,555 456,633

Capital Outlay:
General Government -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures 4,605,176 4,720,006 4,604,007 115,999

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures 2,369 26,768 658,887 632,119

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out -                    (8,270) (8,270) -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                    (8,270) (8,270) -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,369 18,498 650,617 632,119

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 5,070,965 5,070,965 5,070,965 -                    

Priod Period Adjustment 93,100          93,100          93,100 -                    

Fund Balance, End of Year 5,166,434$  5,182,563$  5,814,682$   632,119$      

Budgeted Amounts

City of Tehachapi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 489,163$        489,163$       396,866$       (92,297)$        
Investment Earnings 10,000 6,000 27,952 21,952

Total Revenues 499,163 495,163 424,818 (70,345)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 154,630 93,815 91,250 2,565             
Capital Outlay 2,895 2,895 -                     
Debt Service

Interest Expense 168,005 168,005 168,005 -                     
Principal 67,000 67,000 67,000 -                     

Total Expenditures 389,635 331,715 329,150 2,565

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 109,528 163,448 95,668 (67,780)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,025,316 4,025,316 4,025,316 -                     

Fund Balance, End of Year 4,134,844$    4,188,764$   4,120,984$    (67,780)$       

Budgeted Amounts

City of Tehachapi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - RDA Low and Moderate Housing Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Budgetary Accounting 
 
Budgetary comparison schedules are presented as part of the Required Supplementary Information for major Special 
Revenue Funds as provided for by GASB Statement No. 34.  The City budget is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in United States of America.  The City Manager is required to prepare and submit to the City 
Council the annual budget of the City and administer it after the adoption.  City Council approval is required for budget revisions 
that affect the total appropriations of the City. 
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Variance with
Final Budget

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 1,145,370$   1,587,464$   442,094$     
Investment Earnings 11,600          15,465 3,865

Total Revenues 1,156,970 1,602,929 445,959

EXPENDITURES  
Current:

General Government 661,431 582,319 79,112
Public Works 12,028 29,093 (17,065)
Pass-throughs -                    396,866 (396,866)

Debt Service:
Interest Expense 672,019 672,019 -                   
Principal 268,000 268,000 -                   

Total Expenditures 1,613,478 1,948,297 (334,819)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures (456,508) (345,368) 111,140

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out (2,465,393) (2,652,620) (187,227)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,465,393) (2,652,620) (187,227)

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,921,901) (2,997,988) (76,087)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,054,713 4,054,713 -                   

Fund Balance, End of Year 1,132,812$  1,056,725$   (76,087)$     

City of Tehachapi
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - RDA Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Variance with
Final Budget

Final Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Miscellaneous Revenues -$                 -$                    -$                  

Total Revenues -                   -                      -                    

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay -                   -                      -                    

Total Expenditures -                   -                      -                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures -                   -                      -                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 686,680       688,657          1,977             

Net Change in Fund Balance 686,680       688,657          1,977             

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year (688,657)      (688,657)        -                    

Fund Balance, End of Year (1,977)$       -$                    1,977$          

City of Tehachapi

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Budget and Actual - Railroad Depot

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
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Special Capital
Revenue Projects Total

ASSETS
Cash and Investments 1,305,811$       1,502,573$       2,808,384$       
Receivables 254,150            231,065            485,215

Total Assets 1,559,961$      1,733,638$       3,293,599$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES  
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 76,124$            307,441$          383,565$          
Due to Other Funds 222,319            59,501              281,820            
Deferred Revenue -                       168,157            168,157            

Total Liabilities 298,443 535,099 833,542

Fund Balances:
Restricted 1,261,568         1,027,150         2,288,718         
Assigned -                       294,987            294,987            
Unassigned (50)                   (123,598)          (123,648)          

Total Fund Balances 1,261,518 1,198,539 2,460,057

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 1,559,961$      1,733,638$       3,293,599$      

City of Tehachapi
Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011
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Special Capital
Revenue Projects Total

REVENUES
Taxes 636,897$          -$                     636,897$          
Licenses and Permits 243,179            103,356            346,535
Intergovernmental 1,372,117         439,618            1,811,735
Investment Earnings 9,258 6,817                16,075
Miscellaneous Revenue -                       1,440                1,440

Total Revenues 2,261,451 551,231 2,812,682

EXPENDITURES  
Current:

General Government 5,837 -                       5,837
Public Works 890,709 3,250                893,959
Community Development 13,062              101,676 114,738

Capital Outlay 1,202,615 1,085,496 2,288,111
Debt Service:

Interest Expense 24,195 -                       24,195
Principal 24,493 -                       24,493

Total Expenditures 2,160,911 1,190,422 3,351,333

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 100,540 (639,191) (538,651)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 295,730 652,224 947,954
Transfers Out (295,679) -                       (295,679)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 51 652,224 652,275

Net Change in Fund Balances 100,591 13,033 113,624

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,007,313 1,185,506 2,192,819

Prior Period Adjustment 153,614 -                       153,614

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,261,518$      1,198,539$       2,460,057$      

City of Tehachapi
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Surface
Streets Traffic TDA 3 Transportation

and Roads Signals Bike Safety Program

ASSETS
Cash and Investments -$                     799,010$         -$                     -$                     
Receivables 195,426           -                       3,171               -                       

Total Assets 195,426$        799,010$        3,171$             -$                    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable -$                     34,826$           50$                  -$                     
Due to Other Funds 80,878             -                       3,171               -                       
Deferred Revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Liabilities 80,878             34,826             3,221               -                       

Fund Balances:
Restricted 114,548           764,184           -                       -                       
Assigned -                       -                       -                       -                       
Unassigned -                       -                       (50)                   -                       

Total Fund Balances 114,548           764,184           (50)                   -                       

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 195,426$        799,010$        3,171$             -$                    

City of Tehachapi
Combining Balance Sheet 

Non-major Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2011
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TEA Grant Beverage Community Mill & H Safe Route
Downtown Container Lighting Development Improvements to School

Beautification Recycling District Grant Gas Tax ARRA Project Fund

-$                     5,226$             297,150$       -$                   3,164$           1,641$           -$                    
-                       5,000               7,590             -                     42,963           -                     -                      

-$                     10,226$           304,740$       -$                  46,127$        1,641$           -$                   

-$                     -$                     15,305$         -$                   24,302$         1,641$           -$                    
-                       -                       131,550         -                     6,720             -                     -                      
-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      

-                       -                       146,855         -                     31,022           1,641             -                      

-                       10,226             157,885         -                     15,105           -                     -                      
-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      
-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      

-                       10,226             157,885         -                     15,105           -                     -                      

-$                     10,226$           304,740$       -$                  46,127$        1,641$           -$                   

Continued
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Valley Boulevard Facility Total
Improvement Oil Recycling Impact Fee Non-Major

Project Grant Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Short-term Investments -$                       644$                198,976$         1,305,811$      
Receivables -                         -                       -                       254,150

Total Assets -$                      644$               198,976$         1,559,961$     

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable -$                       -$                     -$                     76,124$           
Due to Other Funds -                         -                       -                       222,319           
Deferred Revenue -                         -                       -                       -                       

Total Liabilities -                         -                       -                       298,443           

Fund Balances:
Restricted -                         644                  198,976           1,261,568        
Assigned -                         -                       -                       -                       
Unassigned -                         -                       -                       (50)                   

Total Fund Balances -                         644                  198,976           1,261,518        

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances -$                      644$               198,976$         1,559,961$     

City of Tehachapi
Combining Balance Sheet 

Non-major Special Revenue Funds - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2010
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Surface
Streets Traffic TDA 3 Transportation

and Roads Signals Bike Safety Program

REVENUES
Taxes -$                    -$                    -$                     -$                    
Licenses and Permits -                       243,179           -                       -                       
Intergovernmental 195,426           78,000             3,171               219,925           
Investment Earnings 839                  4,833               -                       -                       

Total Revenues 196,265           326,012           3,171               219,925           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government -                       -                       -                       -                       
Public Works -                       -                       -                       -                       
Community Development -                       -                       -                       -                       

Capital Outlay -                       80,540             3,221               5,262               
Debt Service:

Interest Expense 24,195             -                       -                       -                       
Principal 24,493             -                       -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 48,688             80,540             3,221               5,262               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 147,577 245,472 (50) 214,663

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 49,403             265                  -                       -                       
Transfers Out (236,046)          (9,965)              -                       (49,403)            

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (186,643)          (9,700)              -                       (49,403)

Net Change in Fund Balances (39,066)            235,772           (50)                   165,260           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year -                       528,412 -                       (165,260)

Prior Period Adjustments 153,614           -                       -                       -                       

Fund Balances, End of Year 114,548$        764,184$        (50)$                 -$                    

City of Tehachapi
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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TEA Grant Beverage Community Mill & H Safe Route
Downtown Container Lighting Development Improvements to School

Beautification Recycling District Grant Gas Tax ARRA Project Fund

-$                     -$                     278,225$       -$                  358,672$      -$                   -$                   
-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      
-                       5,000               -                    -                     -                     466,474         250,000          
-                       37                    1,848             -                     22                  -                     -                      

-                       5,037               280,073         -                     358,694         466,474         250,000          

-                       -                       5,837             -                     -                     -                     -                      
-                       -                       252,663         -                     637,781         -                     -                      
-                       -                       13,062           -                     -                     -                     -                      
-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     463,429         257,461          

-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      
-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      

-                       -                       271,562         -                     637,781         463,429         257,461          

-                       5,037               8,511 -                     (279,087)        3,045             (7,461)             

-                       -                       -                    2,174             197,000         6,206             30,717            
-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      

-                       -                       -                    2,174             197,000 6,206 30,717

-                       5,037               8,511             2,174             (82,087)          9,251             23,256            

-                       5,189 149,374 (2,174) 97,192 (9,251) (23,256)

-                       -                       -                    -                     -                     -                     -                      

-$                     10,226$           157,885$       -$                  15,105$        -$                   -$                   

Continued
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Valley Boulevard Facility Total
Improvement Oil Recycling Impact Fee Non-Major

Project Grant Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES
Taxes -$                      -$                    -$                     636,897$        
Licenses and Permits -                         -                       -                       243,179           
Intergovernmental -                         -                       154,121           1,372,117        
Investment Earnings 765                    4                      910                  9,258               

Total Revenues 765                    4                      155,031           2,261,451        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government -                         -                       -                       5,837               
Public Works -                         265                  -                       890,709           
Community Development -                         -                       -                       13,062             

Capital Outlay 392,702             -                       -                       1,202,615        
Debt Service:

Interest Expense -                         -                       -                       24,195             
Principal -                         -                       -                       24,493             

Total Expenditures 392,702             265                  -                       2,160,911

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (391,937)            (261)                 155,031           100,540

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 9,965                 -                       -                       295,730           
Transfers Out (265)                   -                       -                       (295,679)          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 9,700                 -                       -                       51

Net Change in Fund Balances (382,237)            (261)                 155,031           100,591           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 382,237 905 43,945             1,007,313        

Prior Period Adjustment -                         -                       -                       153,614           

Fund Balances, End of Year -$                      644$               198,976$         1,261,518$     

City of Tehachapi
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Continued

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2010
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Energy
Tucker Road / Efficiency Green Street Capital
Valley Blvd. Conservation Lighting Equipment

Exchange Project Project Replacement

ASSETS
Cash and Investments 46,891$         -$                   154,963$       120,985$       
Receivables -                     -                     168,157         -                     

Total Assets 46,891$        -$                  323,120$       120,985$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable -$                   -$                   272,529$       -$                   
Due to Other Funds -                     2,505             -                     -                     
Deferred Revenue -                     -                     168,157         -                     

Total Liabilities -                     2,505             440,686         -                     

Fund Balances:
Restricted 46,891           -                     -                     -                     
Assigned -                     -                     -                     120,985         
Unassigned -                     (2,505)            (117,566)        -                     

Total Fund Balances 46,891           (2,505)            (117,566)        120,985         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 46,891$        -$                  323,120$       120,985$      

City of Tehachapi
Combining Balance Sheet 

Non-major Capital Project Funds
June 30, 2011
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Public Valley Downtown Parks & Rec.
Safety Capital General Shoulder Ext - Master Capital Challenger

Project Fee Plan Update HSIP Plan Project Drive Exit

539,037$       22,350$         -$                   18,874$         422,122$       173,116$       
-                     -                     5,760             -                     -                     -                     

539,037$       22,350$         5,760$           18,874$        422,122$      173,116$       

-$                   -$                   1,948$           15,775$         3,250$           2,213$           
-                     -                     3,812             -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

-                     -                     5,760             15,775           3,250             2,213             

539,037         22,350           -                     -                     418,872         -                     
-                     -                     -                     3,099             -                     170,903         
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

539,037         22,350           -                     3,099             418,872         170,903         

539,037$       22,350$         5,760$           18,874$        422,122$      173,116$       

Continued
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Tehachapi Tehachapi Total
Centennial Blvd Imprv - Non-Major

Plaza Phase IV Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Investments -$                   4,235$           1,502,573$    
Receivables 57,148           -                     231,065         

Total Assets 57,148$        4,235$           1,733,638$    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 4,669$           7,057$           307,441$       
Due to Other Funds 53,184           -                     59,501
Deferred Revenue -                     -                     168,157         

Total Liabilities 57,853           7,057             535,099

Fund Balances:
Restricted -                     -                     1,027,150      
Assigned -                     -                     294,987         
Unassigned (705)               (2,822)            (123,598)        

Total Fund Balances (705)               (2,822)            1,198,539      

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 57,148$        4,235$           1,733,638$    

City of Tehachapi
Combining Balance Sheet 

Non-major Capital Project Funds - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Energy
Tucker Road / Efficiency Green Street Capital
Valley Blvd. Conservation Lighting Equipment

Exchange Project Project Replacement

REVENUES
Licenses, Permits, and Fines -                   -                   -                    -                    
Intergovernmental -                   -                   14,306          -                    
Miscellaneous Revenue -                   -                   -                    -                    
Investment Earnings 326              -                   -                    -                    

Total Revenues 326                -                     14,306           -                     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Works -                     -                     -                     -                     
Community Development -                     2,455             -                     -                     

Capital Outlay -                     -                     415,640         -                     

Total Expenditures -                     2,455             415,640         -                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 326 (2,455) (401,334) -                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In -                     -                     200,000         -                     
Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     200,000         -                     

Net Change in Fund Balances 326                (2,455)            (201,334)        -                     

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 46,565           (50)                 83,768           120,985

Fund Balances, End of Year 46,891$        (2,505)$         (117,566)$     120,985$      

City of Tehachapi
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Capital Project Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Public Valley Downtown Parks & Rec.
Safety Capital General Shoulder Ext - Master Capital Challenger

Project Fee Plan Update HSIP Plan Project Drive Exit

-                     -                    -                    -                   103,356       -                    
-                     -                    5,760             -                   -                   -                    
-                     -                    -                    -                   1,440           -                    

3,750             -                    -                    -                   2,741           -                    

3,750             -                     5,760             -                     107,537         -                     

-                     -                     -                     -                     3,250             -                     
-                     22,493           -                     76,728           -                     -                     
-                     -                     11,915           -                     22,980           31,609           

-                     22,493           11,915           76,728           26,230           31,609           

3,750             (22,493)          (6,155)            (76,728)          81,307           (31,609)          

-                     -                     6,155             100,000         -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

-                     -                     6,155             100,000         -                     -                     

3,750             (22,493)          -                     23,272           81,307           (31,609)          

535,287 44,843 -                     (20,173) 337,565 202,512

539,037$       22,350$         -$                  3,099$          418,872$      170,903$       

Continued
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Tehachapi Tehachapi Total
Centennial Blvd Imprv - Non-Major

Plaza Phase IV Funds

REVENUES
Licenses, Permits, and Fines -                   -                    103,356        
Intergovernmental 419,552       -                    439,618        
Miscellaneous Revenue -                   -                    1,440            
Investment Earnings -                   -                    6,817            

Total Revenues 419,552         -                     551,231         

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Works -                     -                     3,250             
Community Development -                     -                     101,676         

Capital Outlay 549,716         53,636           1,085,496      

Total Expenditures 549,716         53,636           1,190,422

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (130,164)        (53,636)          (639,191)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 295,255         50,814           652,224         
Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 295,255 50,814 652,224

Net Change in Fund Balances 165,091         (2,822)            13,033           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (165,796) -                     1,185,506      

Fund Balances, End of Year (705)$            (2,822)$          1,198,539$    

City of Tehachapi
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Continued

Non-Major Capital Project Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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East
Capital Hills Tucker Road Tehachapi Blvd. Summit

89-1 87-1 Project 89-3 89-2

ASSETS
Cash and Investments 1,169,952$     87,455$          6,059$               -$                   
Cash with Fiscal Agent -                      -                      4,467                 -                      
Receivables -                      -                      22,837               -                      
Advances to Other Funds -                      -                      -                         -                      
Other Assets -                      -                      25,911               231,311           

Total Assets 1,169,952$     87,455$          59,274$             231,311$        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts Payable 5,600$             -$                    -$                       9,164$             
Advances From Other Funds -                      -                      -                         98,233             
Due to Other Funds -                      -                      -                         39,647             
Due to Bond Holders 1,164,352        87,455             59,274               84,267             

Total Liabilities 1,169,952$     87,455$          59,274$             231,311$        

City of Tehachapi
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Tehachapi Special Total
Meadows Districts Agency

90-1 Revolving Fund Funds

261,902$          -$                      1,525,368$      
83                     -                        4,550                

-                        -                        22,837              
-                        98,233              98,233              
-                        -                        257,222

261,985$          98,233$            1,908,210$      

-$                      -$                      14,764$            
-                        98,233              196,466            
-                        -                        39,647              

261,985            -                        1,657,333         

261,985$          98,233$            1,908,210$      
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Frcm the De& of

Council Member Linda Vernon

February 7,2072

fhe Honorable Mayor Ed Grimes
City of Tehachapi
115 South Robinson Sueet
Tehachapi, CA 93561

Dear Mayot Grimes;

For the past 72 years I have had the amazing honot and ptivilege of sering our community fust on
the Planning Commission, and for the past 10 years on the City Council. It has been an expedence

that has enriched and blessed my [ife in ways too numerous to List. That is why my letter to you is

not an easy one.

Our lives may occasionally ake a tun that is quirc unexpected. lWhile those changes can be

wonderful and provide gteat opportunities and possibilities, it can tesult in requiring other decisions

of us that are difficult at best. One such tum for me took place onJanuary 28,2012, when I was

blessed to become the wife of Mr. BtuceJay, a businessman and resident of Bakersfi.eld. That is

where we will make oru home. To that end, it is with heattfelt sadness I submit my official lettet of
resignation as City Council Metnber for the City of Tehachzpi, effective Tuesday, February 7,2072.
I would like to express by deepest gratitude to the residents of the City of Tehachapr for their
confidence and support in allowing me not only to serve as a Clty Council Member, but also fot the
privilege of presiding as yoru Mayor for two yeats.

To my feliow council memben and out City saff, for whom I have a profound respect and
admiration, my deepest gratitude to you for your leadetship, dedication and commitnrent to always

doing the dght fling fot orx community to make it the best it can be. Thank you for all yoru yeats

of support and encoruagernent. I could not have done it without you! As my children and

grandchildren live in Tehachapt you will remain a big part of my life and always hold a very special
place ia my heart.

'Wannest regatds,
.. il. 'n f ' t \#_-b?r,*^)
LrndaJiy (Vernon)
Tehachapi City Council Membet

cc: Mr. Greg Garrett, City Manager
lvt. Tom Schroeter, City Attomey
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